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Sen Dever asked how the sum of 150 million dollars was arrived at and if he thought it
would address the need adequately in the oil patch.

Mr. Lambert replied that it's a starting point. He said they are 20 years behind being
reimbursed and it will go very quickly. It's a small amount considering where they are at
from a health care infrastructure standpoint in playing catch up.

Ron Ness, North Dakota Petroleum Council, testified in strong support.

Andy Peterson, Greater ND Chamber, spoke in support.

There was no further testimony.

The hearing on SB 2187 was closed.




2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

~ Senate Human Services Committee
Red River Room, State Capitol

SB 2187
1/22/13
Job Number 17547

[ ] Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature W

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to a Bank of North Dakota medical facility infrastructure loan program.

Minutes:

Chairman J. Lee opened discussion on SB 2187.
Sen. Anderson moved a Do Pass and rerefer to Appropriations.
Sen. Larsen seconded the motion.

Discussion followed that this bill does not spend 150 million dollars. It is being taken off the
table out of the surplus and will be restored some time in the future.

Roll call vote 5-0-0. Carrier is Sen. Anderson.







FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
01/24/2013

mendment to: SB 2187

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.
2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium

Counties
Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

All costs to administer and audit the proposed Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Program will be paid out of the
program fund and there will not be any fiscal impact to the General Fund.

B. Fiscalimpact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.




Name: Robert A. Humann
Agency: Bank of North Dakota
Telephone: 328.5703
Date Prepared: 01/24/2013
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to the medical facility infrastructure loan program

Minutes: Testimony attached # 1-3

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on SB 2187. All committee members were
present except Senator Robinson.

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Joe Morrissette

Chairman Holmberg: SB 2187 is a re-referral from the Human Services committee.

Senator Judy Lee, District 13, West Fargo
Chairman, Senate Human Services Committee and Bill Sponsor

One member from her committee said he likes this bill because the money gets paid back.
There are several medical facilities in this state that are struggling. They need to expand
their facilities and it's hard to get access to capital. This would set up a medical facility loan
infrastructure loan fund. It could only lend 75% of the value -that would be the maximum,
or $20M, whichever is less. It would have an interest rate of 1% amortized over 25 years
and it's for not for profit organizations. We've heard from many facilities that not only need
expanding space, but in some cases, may have issues with asbestos or something else
and they are just not able to find the dollars to do what has to be done in order to upgrade
their facility. We have to have these critical access hospitals although it doesn't say that it's
limited to critical access.

Jennifer Clark, Legislative Council

Testimony attached # 1 (Grindberg amendment 13.0505.02001)

I'm here, because when Senator Grindberg brought his amendments up, | reviewed the bill
and it came to my attention that we engrossed that over in Senator Lee's committee. We
made a mistake so I'm using his amendments as a vehicle to fix that. If you don't move
forward on his amendments, | would encourage you or | could draft you a set that would do
the fix. | don't need to address Senator Grindberg's changes if | could tell you the
housekeeping I'm doing on this. (Chairman Holmberg said to proceed.)
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The nature of the hiccup that happened here is that section one and section two of this bill
are both the same section of century code. Section one is creating it today. Section two is
amending it in the future. The nuance of that means that if you make any changes in
section one, you also need to make them in section two. We didn't do that. We're doing it
here:

The first 1,2,3 entries are the substantive one. Everything on pages three through five is
housekeeping. If you want to look and see what Senator Grindberg's amendment would
look like all put together, that new bill subsection three (down on the 2" half) - that's what
his section would look like all put together because we have to incorporate that into section
two.

Senator Warner asked to explain page 2 -line 7 which has the phrase "prospective
payment system hospitals" because he didn't remember seeing that phrase before.

Jennifer Clark: | can't tell exactly what that means in the world of hospital billing.

Chairman Holmberg: The committee is understanding why this particular set of
amendments is before us.

(5:44) John Vastag, Executive Director, Health Policy Consortium (Lobbyist # 94)
Testified in favor of SB 2187

Testimony attached # 2

Testimony attached # 3 - Pushing the Limits 8-23-12

Senator Warner: PPS - Prospective Payment Hospitals - they are paid on a different
payment system. In essence, they are the six big hospitals in the state: Trinity, St. A's,
Altru, etc.

(12:52) V.Chairman Bowman: How many people go into hospitals in an emergency
situation and how many don't pay, putting hospitals in a tremendous financial crisis?

John Vastag: Yes, we discussed that. In the study (attachment #3) you will find a section
on bad debt. .

Senator Kilzer: How in the world do you think you'll be able to pay back this loan? The
critical access hospitals were here last session and received a considerable amount of an
outright grant because we were told that quite a few of them would be going under. That
was largely the fault of Medicare that they were going under. | don't see any improvement
at all about Medicare reimbursement, particularly to critical access hospitals. On the PPS
side, | don't see anything bright in the future there either.

ObamaCare relied on $716B cut in Medicare reimbursement for medical providers and that
has not been lessened. A further question - How can you repay this? In a few decades
from now, will you be asking forgiveness of this loan?

John Vastag: No, | don't think we'll be back in 20 years asking forgiveness for the loan.
One of the criteria to accept the loan is that they have to present a very solid business plan.
Otherwise it would not get approved. They would have to have a repayment structure in
that business plan.
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(16:09) Senator Warner: Receiving trauma patients in oil producing counties - would that
include all six of the PPS's?

John Vastag: Yes, because all six currently receive trauma patients from out west.
Senator Warner. And is this level three? Answer. Level two.

Senator Warner: Most of the questions refer to trauma - are there limitations within the
loan program which limits them to construction of trauma related facilities? Could you build
a cancer treatment center with money from this?

John Vastag: The funds could be used to build any infrastructure. The majority would go
to build primary care access because that's the real issue out there. The problem is two-
fold - one, we have primary care access of new clinics so more patients can go to the
clinics instead of the ERs, and two, to enhance the emergency room trauma services
departments within existing facilities.

Senator Warner: The limiter to receiving trauma patients refers only to the PPS
hospitals?  Answer: Yes.

(18:00) Senator Carlisle: We have some large capitalization banks in this state, why
wouldn't you go to them? You said they have to have a good business plan.

John Vastag: Even though the facility may have a sound business plan, with the current
reimbursement systems as they are, they could get a loan, but it would be at a much higher
percentage. This would make it very difficult for them to carry this out. The ideal situation
is by accessing a portion of what they need at a lower interest rate, they will be able to
access more capital for that project. The purpose of the low interest loan is that it would
help them get over the bridge.

John Vastag stated that Ron Ness from ND Petroleum Council strongly supports this bill
also.

Bill Shalhoob - GNDC Greater ND Chamber (Lobbyist #113)

Testified in favor of SB 2187

No written testimony.

We also support this bill and think it would be a good step that could be taken that would
help with some of the critical care problems that exist in the state. We're also supporting
the study of that because it looks like we're headed down a road and we're wondering
where the end game is also in terms of repayment. That's why we really need to look at
these issues. The 1% loan is probably a quarter of what of that percentage you'd pay in the
open market today - even for bonding which | think is around 4-4.5% for items that are not
covered by property tax and the guaranteed revenue stream from it. = We would urge
strong consideration of this as a way to help us dig out from undermeath a problem we
seem to have developed.

Senator Warner: (asked question of Karlene Fine) The bank is not going to make any
money on this loan, but normally, it would take more than 1% to actually do the paperwork -
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the mechanical aspects of handling a loan for 25 years. In your opinion, is the 1%
adequate so that the bank doesn't actually show a loss in its operations by handling loans
of this nature?

Karlene Fine: Referred the question to Bob Humann from the Bank of ND who was here.
There had been discussion about some amendments on the bill to cover administrative
fees.

Chairman Holmberg in testimony, the discussion was that the sponsors had worked with
significant input from OMB and the staff of BND. Does OMB support the bill? Joe
Morrissette said Pam is in the room and will answer.

Bob Humann: Sr. VP of Lending for Bank of ND -

We did a fiscal note on this and how we proposed this to the Senate Veteran's Affairs
Committee is that, basically, if it's a one percent interest rate, we'd end up taking half of it
and the other half would go into the fund. We feel that we can administer the loans for just
the half percent and cover our costs with our existing staff and existing systems. If we had
to add new staff, it would be a different story. These are going to be some pretty large
loans. We did propose some amendments to the previous committee that there would be
an administrative fee for the Bank of ND for this fund and there would also be an annual
audit on this fund. Those were the two changes we proposed and they were both adopted.

Pam Sharp: OMB - OMBs involvement in this is that we were part of the committee that
Mr. Vastag mentioned. We gave them some history on how other revolving loans were
structured and how they might structure a revolving loan fund. We helped them get in
contact with the Bank of ND and gave them some direction on how they could put the bill
together. I'm neutral on the bill. It was notincluded in the governor's budget. The time line
for this was at tail end of the governor's budget so it was not even something we were
considering at the time.

(25:50) Senator Carlisle: (question for Mr. Vastag) Sanford is already committed out of
Dickinson for about $20M? and that includes their financing package? Answer: Yes.

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on SB 2187.
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Abill relating to the medical facility infrastructure loan program

Minutes: Testimony attached # 1

Legislative Council - Sheila M. Sandness
OMB - Laney Herauf

Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2030. Senator Grindberg and
Senator Mathern were present.

Senator Kilzer said this is a stand-alone bill that requests loan of $150M for hospitals.
Start by asking Senator Grindberg about his proposed amendments 13.0505.02001 -
attachment #1.

Senator Mathern wondered how this fit in with the statewide plan and any connection with
SB 2004 with the Department of Health.

John Vastag - Health Policy Consortium - He represents Trinity, Altru and Sanford
Health systems. This bill came out of the oil impact study done by the Health Policy
Consortium as an independent study. The goal was to look at the impact of health care
within oil producing counties. We came back last fall with three recommendations and this
was one of the recommendations. A large number of facilities out there have done a great
job of expanding hours and trying to create more access, the reality of the fact is that we
can't begin to keep up with the demand. We're seeing a lot of folks end up in ER that don't
really need to be in ER. What the intent of this low interest loan would be to allow those
facilities to access the needed capital to create some infrastructure and add some services
to the facilities. They could go to their local banks to get it, but it would be a much higher
rate and would be a program that would not be sustainable for them. This low interest loan
program would be the same as the one currently modeled for IT. Thatis a $5M low interest
loan through BND that started in 2009. You renewed it last year and it's going very well
with folks paying it back very timely. We need to create some more access atthe primary
care level.
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Senator Mathern: How does this fit in with statewide health care planning? How does this
proposal fit in with sustainability and general planning for the state of ND in health care
facilities?

Discussion on how the bill was formed and the makeup of the policy consortium.
Discussed Senator Grindberg's bill SB 2169
Senator Kilzer asked about 75-25 or 90-10.

John Vastag: The loan would be the lesser of $20M or 75% of the project with a 25 year
payback. You could loan no more than 75% of the project or $20M cap. If Dan at Watford
City wants to build $50M hospital, he wouldn't be able to get $50M, he'd get $20M cap.
Another example, in the bill you will see that it is designed for the critical access hospitals
and the PPS hospitals that take trauma patients which in essence would be all six because
they are all taking trauma patients in the west now. Mayville is a critical access would not
technically be eligible.

Senator Grinberg: Bob Humann - why can't you make a loan now?
Bob Humann, VP, Bank of ND: They want better terms. Discussed terms.

Senator Grinberg: We have advisory board for the legacy fund. There's no reason BND
borrow $200M out from Legacy fund in a low risk portfolio, pay the Legacy Fund at 1% and
turn around and assess a loan program to the hospitals for 2%.

Discussed loans, financing of health care, Medicare population, reimbursement, finding
workers.

Senator Kilzer was concerned that hospitals would be able to cost shift to third party
payers much longer. Who's stuck if the whole thing goes under? Answer - the state.

Senator Kilzer wanted to know why the study focused on hospitals instead of clinics. If
patients are going to avoid the ER, why notbuild up clinics? You didn't talk about that too
much in the report, the financing or bad debt.

John Vastag: This bill is inclusive for clinics too.

Craig Lambrecht, MD, President of Sanford - Answered questions on the ability of larger
hospitals in the state to absorb large debt. He said they have to ask themselves if this is
humanitarian aid or is it development aid. You'l find that some of the smaller hospitals are
going to have a hard time meeting eligibility requirements because they have problems with
workers, turnover, and older facilities. If you finance Watford because they're not making
it, and then CHI moves in, what happens to that market share when the proforma looks like
they might make it if we give them $20M for a hospital?
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Talked about the smaller and larger hospitals getting loans and taking on risk,
reimbursement from the federal government, insurance companies. Sanford is at risk for
losing $100M. A lot of things happen when you have to face $100M cuts. Sanford has no
intention of borrowing on program. This is more like impending doom for the smaller
facilities because they will not get access to capital. He came from Wishek and the days of
having a hospital, a clinic, a nursing home and having all the providers in the workforce
aren't reality, but it's a difficult discussion to have because folks want everything now and
local.

Senator Kilzer thanked him.

Craig Lambrecht added that every community is going to have to have skin in the game.
If you're looking for investment from the state, for CHI, for Sanford, there has to be skin in
the game. Otherwise there is a glide path. We've got financing and we can check out.
That's the worst case scenario. You build it, you can't supportit, you can't sustain it, and
who's got responsibility. The care we deliver has to change inpatient/outpatient.

They will meet again.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of biIIIresolug)n:

A bill relating to the medical facility infrastructure loan program

Minutes:

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Pam Sharp

Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2187. Senator Grindberg and
Senator Mathern were present.

Senator Mathern - | was wondering if we should have some sort of reporting requirement. |
am supportive of the loan fund. I'm disappointed that the Health Council hasn't been here to
say this fits into a plan. If that's not the case maybe we should put some language in this
bill to make sure there is at least that kind of communication.

Senator Grindberg - My sense is that there are two or three other bills that have revolving
loans with cities for $200 million and I'm a sponsor of a bill for $150 million revolving loan
fund for water projects. There is $150 million here. | think it's important that we keep this bill
alive but I'm not comfortable with $150 million yet knowing at the end of the session we are
going to put the final pieces of the puzzle together. | was glad to hear Craig from Sanford
said they don't plan to use this.

Senator Kilzer - We certainly have noticed that the state health council has not been here.
We haven't heard from them. There hasn't been that much interest on the hospital side of
it. | would have a question of Legislative Council about the ability of health facilities, both
clinics and hospitals to access some of these other funds that are supposed to be helping
critical needs. Are there things in the governor's budget?

Pam Sharp, OMB - There aren't any, there's not anything else in the governor's budget
that addresses this need. Probably what you are referring to is the oil impact fund and
could they go to the oil impact fund but | don't believe, they would have to; it's got to be a
political subdivision that goes to the oil impact fund.
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Senator Kilzer - It would have to be county, a city, or park district, etc. I've expressed
myself before about repayment of this debt. How much does critical access want this time?

Jerry Jurena, North Dakota Hospital Association, (Lobbyist # 120) - It depends on the
facility. | have 2 administrators here from the west. They are looking at a project to rebuild
their hospital, roughly $50 million. Dickinson hospital which is already in progress and there
hospital is roughly about $100 million. We have a number of other facilities that are looking
at remodeling their ER and facilities and these are anywhere from $10-20 million. We
polled the 12 hospitals west of highway 83 we found that there was a need of about $165
million for either full replacement or partial remodeling of their ER's.

Senator Mathern - Is there someone from health council here?

Jerry Jurena - | am.

Senator Mathern - Do they have a position on this?

Jerry Jurena - It has not been brought before the council.

Senator Mathern - Why wouldn't this be brought before the health council?

Jerry Jurena - We take a look at some of the things that are going on in the west, the rise
of chlamydia. Some of the health issues out there but we do not get in to the infrastructure
part of operations.

Senator Mathern - Does anybody look at infrastructure?
Jerry Jurena - Not at the hospitals, no sir.

Senator Grindberg - The State Chamber is doing a study.
Senator Mathern - I'd be willing to work on an amendment.

Pam Sharp - There was a committee that came with this concept. They supported it, but
were just a working group, no formal committee. OMB with several other agencies was
involved. (9:10) It was a working group to see what to do with health issues in the western
part of the state.

Senator Kilzer - I'm not real enthused with this bill at $150 million. | asked the question to
Eric Hardmeyer about who is on the hook. | don't see how it's going to be repaid. There is 2
big items; the biggest of all is the Obama care and the $716 billion of Medicare cuts that
are coming. The second thing is the bad debt that these hospitals are getting now and they
are asking for money at the present time. So | don't see how they are going to get out of the
red. This will end up being an unfunded liability to the state of $150 million. We already
have well over a billion dollars of unfunded liability in the various pension plans and maybe
some other things we don't know about. As a free standing bill I'm not enthused about
giving it a do pass. | would much rather go along with Senator Grindberg in keeping it alive
for the present time and then somewhere along the line put it in to the Health Department
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bill or something. This is really Industrial Commission the way it sounds. Both of those
entities should have a general idea of what would be feasible. I'm disappointed if this need
isn't addressed in any of the governor's suggestions. Obviously he either rejected it in his
budget or else didn't think of it or something. (11:54)

Pam Sharp - The meeting | went to was at the very end of when we had already pretty
much finalized the budget so it wasn't anything that was ever brought to the governor's
office as a potential thing to include in the budget.

Senator Kilzer - I'm not willing to put a do pass on it and bring it to the committee.

Senator Grindberg - I'm not going to vote for $150 million. | would be comfortable with
keeping this alive at a $10 million figure for discussion purposes but there are too many
variable yet. | agree wholeheartedly about ability to pay.

Jerry Jurena - Would it be permissible to put a hold on it and give the committee time to
put amendments on it so it wouldn't be an unfunded liability? That it is targeted strictly to
facilities that are now operating and struggling in the west? We could work with the Bank of
North Dakota we could bring some people in and restructure it a little differently.

Senator Kilzer - I'm willing to listen to that. There are prime sponsors on here that you
could work with and present it to us next week.

Senator Mathern - | would hope with the sentiment expressed, the amendments coming
back and maybe some discussion between now and next Wednesday or whenever we
meet we can have a bill that we can bring to committee.

Senator Kilzer - How much further do we want to put in specifics? You mentioned a figure
of $10 million.

Senator Grindberg - It's a number off the top of my head to keep the bill alive.

Senator Mathern - I'd like to keep the entire amount but have some conditions that are
comfortable with the committee.

Senator Grindberg - We are going to get to day 77 and there's only going to be so much
money left.

Pam Sharp - The governor proposed in $200 million for school construction revolving. |
think we had projected right around $700 million at the end of this biennium in that fund that
would be available to appropriate.

Senator Mathern - | think that would be part of the wording of that amendment you just
talked about. That it relates to those other conditions.

Senator Grindberg - There is a lot more thought process that has to go in to this. Do we
want to spend the Improvement Fund? | would advocate no. What is projected when we
come back in 2 years?
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Senator Kilzer - I'm willing to go along with Senator Grindberg to keep it alive. My other
alternative is to recommend a do not pass on the bill. We need to be in communication with
our leadership and the governor's office about this.

Senator Kilzer - We will meet with more materials next Wednesday.

Senator Kilzer closed the hearing on SB 2187.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to the medical facility infrastructure loan program.

Minutes:

Legislative Council - Becky J. Keller
OMB - Laney Herauf

Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2030. Senator Grindberg and
Senator Mathern were present.

Senator Kilzer - Any new comments from committee members?

Senator Mathern - | hope we have some new amendments to look at. Senator Judy Lee
has some amendments?

Senator Kilzer - | expressed my concerns about 2 things, both related to the ability of the
medical facilities to ever pay back this loan. The number one thing is bad debt, and the
number two thing is the Obama care reducing Medicare by $716 billion in order to finance
the affordability act or whatever. Most of us recognize that hospitals do have a problem and
it isn't going to go away and there is an acute phase to the problem. Committee members
would like to keep the bill alive. What | would propose is an amendment that would change
the $150 million to $12 million and keep it at 75% loan and 25% down payment. The
interest payments are as they are in the original bill and also to have a maximum amount
for one institution set at $3 million or I'd be willing to let that be $4 million but with a total of
$12 million there would be 3 or 4 facilities could use the money.

Senator Grinberg - | will support your amendment, but there are too many moving parts.
Senator Mathern - Can Senator Lee make comments or suggestions she may have?

Senator Judy Lee, District 13 - | don't have any sterling ideas but what | would like to
suggest is that it's very important to keep this bill alive. There is a critical need for this
funding. The serious request that was made to us by hospital CEO's was their access to
capital is so challenging. Quite frankly the $12 million won't even work for one facility in
most cases, but if it's a placeholder so Appropriations can see where this fits in, that would
be okay. There is a payback to this. We spent a fair amount of time in our committee talking
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about this. We really felt it was very important part of being able to have access to high
quality 21% century health care around the area. (6:06)

Senator Kilzer - Do you have an amendment?

Senator Judy Lee - | do not; | didn't know | was supposed to.

Senator Grinberg - Just have Council draft it.

Senator J. Lee - We had one that we added that included to request the Bank of North
Dakota for the cost of administration and audit to be covered but aside from that, just a

technical amendment really.

Senator Kilzer - I'm sure in the end we all agree to keep the bill alive. This will be paired
up in conference committee with the critical access hospital bill.

Senator Mathern - | really do believe the need is so much greater now. | understand the
concept of keeping the bill alive but there is also a concept of making sure that we send it
over to the House with negotiating room. | don't see the House moving ahead with a $150
million bill. With this small amount of money, they might just approve it. We need to be
looking at a negotiating position.

Senator Grinberg - What needs to happen is discussion at leadership levels in both the
House and Senate. (9:54) We need sustainable balance.

Senator Grinberg moved the amendment.

Senator Kilzer closed the hearing on SB 2187.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolutiok"

A bill relating to the medical facility infrastructure loan program.

Minutes: Testimony attached # 1-2

Legislative Council - Becky J. Keller
OMB - Laney Herauf

Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2187. Senator Grindberg and
Senator Mathern were present.

Senator Kilzer reviewed amendment 13.0505.02002. See attachment #1.
In reference to page 2 line 10 "replace 20 with 3 and replace 75 with 25" he asked if they
really intended to replace 75 with 25.

Senator Mathern presented amendment 13.0505.02004 for the subcommittee to consider
as another way of looking at it. See attachment #2.

(01:47) This amendment would make the amount of money available at the smaller critical
access care hospital and clinic projects through a low interest loan. It would have better
negotiating terms with the House on the bigger concerns with the oil patch and fields.
These amendments were reviewed with the hospital association representatives.

Senator Kilzer Have you looked at the other bill in the House regarding critical access
hospitals.

Senator Mathern said he had not.

Senator Kilzer What did the hospital association say when you showed them your
proposed amendment?

Senator Mathern They were supportive. There's not enough money to get into the big
projects. A general concern was there are about 7-8 shovel ready projects ready right now
that could proceed. It would meet the need.

Senator Mathern moved to adopt the amendment 13.0505.02004
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Senator Grinberg seconded for discussion purposes.

Senator Mathern pointed out a technical correction pertaining to the issue of oil producing.
There was also clarification that it limits the loans to facilities that are designated as critical
access hospitals or medical clinics. It takes out the larger hospitals and reduces the
amount to $75M. It's still a loan program.

Senator Mathern - yes Senator Grinberg - no Senator Kilzer - no

Motion fails.

Senator Grinberg said that Senator Mathern's amendment focused on where the need is.
This is not the last that we'll hear of this bill. We have to have a strategy on the SIFF fund.
The time to get serious is after crossover. Whether this bill goes to the house and gets
defeated, we're going to be front and center. This will be a priority, just how do we shake it
out.

Senator Kilzer moved Amendment 13.0505.02002

Second by Senator Grinberg.

Senator Kilzer asked for discussion and if there was comfort with page 2, line 10.

Senator Mathern | will oppose the motion just in the terms of the change but will be
supporting the bill in terms of keeping the bill alive.

(11:27) Discussion followed on the meaning of the 25%.

A vote on Amendment 13.0505.02002

Senator Kilzer - yes Senator Grinberg - yes Senator Mathern - no
Senator Kilzer the bill before us - no other amendments?

Senator Mathern moved a do pass as amended.

Senator Grinberg seconded the motion.

A roll call vote was taken. Yea: 3 Nay: 0 Absent: 0

Senator Kilzer will carry this to the committee.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resoltdtion:

A bill relating to the medical facility infrastructure loan program

Minutes:

Senator Kilzer moved a do pass on the amendment. / 30 505,000~

Seconded by Senator Wanzek.

Senator Mathern - In the subcommittee | offered an alternative amendment which
would have brought this down to $75 million instead of the $150 million because |
believe the $75 million is needed, and it would also restrict it to clearly refer only to
critical access hospitals and clinics. | think those 2 facilities would really help, especially
in the oil patch. However, that amendment was not accepted in the subcommittee and |
think we are going to be moving up before the legislative session is over. As an
alternative to keep this bill alive | support this committee's amendment.

Senator Warner - | will probably resist this amendment and | will vote for the bill
regardless of the amendment but | have a real concern. It seems like there were 12
parties tussling for money on this. One was the oil impact counties and facilities and the
other one is the trauma facilities in which pretty much makes it a statewide issue for
larger hospitals. (2:07)

Senator Mathern - | just thought | would note that that was part of the committee
discussion. The amendment that | had offered would have essentially made the money
go to the oil impacted areas. My intent was to support the bill and | do not support the
amendment.

V.Chairman Grinberg - | concur with your assessment. | know there are some various
approaches here and when Senator Mathern offered his amendment, | wanted a
smaller dollar amount but I'm with you. This should be a program for the northwest
where the demands are huge. I'm not interested in spreading money around for the big
hospitals where the demand really rifles our efforts to help in an area that really needs
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it. I'm going to forward an email that | received over the weekend that will illustrate some
of the pension funds that we have under management. When you see the one sheet,
just imagine where it says XYZ investment company, imagine Bank of North Dakota
under the portfolio of the legacy fund. There is no reason in my opinion why we cannot
have a discussion and | hope we do in this committee because there are other bills with
the same concept. There is water, infrastructure for cities, and | think it totals over a
billion dollars. The governor projected $750 million left at the end of the 2015 biennium
in the SIFF fund. If we use all that up in revolving loan funds we will have nothing in the
SIFF fund at the ending fund balance. My point is, there is no reason why we, in a very
low risk environment have the legacy fund invest, pick a number, $350-400 million,
make the Bank of North Dakota responsible for at 2%, the bank gets a percent, so it's a
2% loan rather than 1% and still very low but we've got to use that capital to North
Dakota's advantage and that's what this discussion should be about and | just don't
know how we are going to get there yet. | think as an Appropriations Committee are
going to be front and center on all these revolving loan funds and we will have
something to say at the end of the session.

Senator Warner - | concur entirely with Senator Grindberg's assessment. | think the
legacy fund can be utilized. It can be leveraged much more efficiently than it is for the
benefit of North Dakota while still maintaining the integrity of the voter's intent when they
set it up.

Senator Kilzer - All in favor of the 2002 amendment - voice vote carried.

Senator Kilzer - Then we have a technical corrections amendment that came from the
auditor's office and that is 13.0505.02001.

Senator Grindberg - | would move that amendment.
Seconded by Senator Kilzer.

Senator Grindberg - This is making the language consistent with the audit functions if
the bill passes and that came from auditor.

Voice vote carried.
Senator Kilzer moved a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2187.
Seconded by Senator Mathern.

A roll call vote was taken. Yea: 13 Nay: 0 Absent: 0. Senator Grindberg will
carry the bill. The hearing was closed on SB 2187.



13.0505.02006 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title.03000 Senate Appropriations Committee
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-l
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187 ) ,\D‘ 7

Page 2, line 10, replace "twenty" with "three"

Page 2, line 10, replace "seventy-five" with "twenty-five"

Page 2, line 26, remove "industrial commission is responsible for contracting with a certified
public"

Page 2, line 27, remove "accounting firm to audit the"

Page 2, line 27, replace "as necessary" with "must be audited in accordance with section
6-09-29"

Page 3, line 1, removed the underscore from "- Audit"

Page 3, line 2, remove the underscore from "and cost of administration"
Page 3, line 8, remove "Funds in the"

Page 3, remove lines 9 through 12

Page 3, line 13, overstrike "2."

Page 3, line 30, replace "twenty" with "three"

Page 3, line 30, replace "seventy-five" with "twenty-five"

Page 4, replace lines 14 through 17 with:

"#2. Fundsin the medical facility infrastructure fund may be used for loans as
provided under this section and to pay the costs of administration of the
fund. Annually, the Bank may deduct a service fee for administering the
medical facility infrastructure fund maintained under this section.

8:3. The medical facility infrastructure fund must be audited in accordance \ﬁth
section 6-09-29. The cost of the audit and any other actual costs incurred
by the Bank on behalf of the fund must be paid from the fund."

Page 4, line 20, replace "$150,000,000" with "$12,000,000"
Page 5, line 1, replace "Sections 1 and" with "Section"
Page 5, line 1, remove the second "and"

Page 5, line 1, replace "are" with "is"

Page 5, line 2, replace "are" with "is"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1



13.0505.07000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
01/24/2013

Amendment to: SB 2187

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues
Expenditures
Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium

'| Counties

Cities
School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

All costs to administer and audit the proposed Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Program will be paid out of the
program fund and there will not be any fiscal impact to the General Fund.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact, Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.
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Agency: Bank of North Dakota
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Date:j?—‘ ig“ 13
Roll Call Vote # /

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ;/;/7

Senate _Appropriations Committee

[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number yd 2 06 5{]5 Oozda;&,

Action Taken D ﬂ # )
Motion Made By Seconded By
Senators | Yes No Senator Yes | No
Chariman Ray Holmberg Senator Tim Mathern
Co-Vice Chairman Bill Bowman Senator David O'Connell
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindberg Senator Larry Robinson
Senator Ralph Kilzer Senator John Warner

Senator Karen Krebsbach
Senator Robert Erbele
Senator Terry Wanzek
Senator Ron Carlisle
Senator Gary Lee

Total (Yes) No

Absent

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Date: Xw/f-—_/j
Roll Call Vote # 2

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. X (&7

Senate _Appropriations Committee

[ ] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number .0 Feo ( W

Action Taken D"’ PM/\
Motion Made By QZ ! . Z@ ZE ?, Seconded By {é Y.
7
Senators Yes | No Senator Yes | No
Chariman Ray Holmberg Senator Tim Mathern
Co-Vice Chairman Bill Bowman Senator David O'Connell
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Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: s_stcomrep_32_012
February 20, 2013 12:05pm Carrier: Grindberg
Insert LC: 13.0505.02006 Title: 03000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2187, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2187
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 2, line 10, replace "twenty" with "three"
Page 2, line 10, replace "seventy-five" with "twenty-five"

Page 2, line 26, remove "industrial commission is responsible for contracting with a certified
public"

Page 2, line 27, remove "accounting firm to audit the"

Page 2, line 27, replace "as necessary" with "must be audited in accordance with section
6-09-29"

Page 3, line 1, removed the underscore from "- Audit"

Page 3, line 2, remove the underscore from "and costs of administration”
Page 3, line 8, remove "Funds in the"

Page 3, remove lines 9 through 12

Page 3, line 13, overstrike "2."

Page 3, line 30, replace "twenty" with "three"

Page 3, line 30, replace "seventy-five" with "twenty-five"

Page 4, replace lines 14 through 17 with:

"#2. Funds in the medical facility infrastructure fund may be used for loans as
provided under this section and to pay the costs of administration of the
fund. Annually, the Bank may deduct a service fee for administering the
medical facility infrastructure fund maintained under this section.

8:3. The medical facility infrastructure fund must be audited in accordance
with section 6-09-29. The cost of the audit and any other actual costs
incurred by the Bank on behalf of the fund must be paid from the fund."

Page 4, line 20, replace "$150,000,000" with "$12,000,000"
Page 5, line 1, replace "Sections 1 and" with "Section"
Page 5, line 1, remove the second "and"

Page 5, line 1, replace "are" with "is"

Page 5, line 2, replace "are" with "is"

Renumber accordingly
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Sen. J. Lee: We were looking at larger projects. There is a great difficulty in ND for these
institutions to access money for these projects. It is intended to look at those bigger
projects.

John Vastag, Executive Director for the Health Policy Consortium, testified in support
of the bill. (See Testimony #1) (Also passed around a handout, See Handout #2)

15:29

Chairman Weisz: Based on your suggested amendment you are looking at a maximum of
$10 million. That would be a $40 million project?

John Vastag: The total package would be $75 million with a maximum individual loan to
an individual facility of $10 million. Yes, the project could be $40 million or more, but it
would cap out at $10 million on that type of project.

Chairman Weisz: The smallest loan would $250,000; the project size has a minimum of
$250,000, correct?

John Vastag: Correct.
Rep. Laning: Wouldn't 75% be from the loan program?
John Vastag: It should be that 75% would be from the loan program.

Chairman Weisz: That's not what the language says. It says the maximum loan would be
$2.5 million on a $10 million loan. That is 25% not, 75%.

John Vastag: It was designed for 75% to come from loan, and 25% coming from other
sources.

Representative Oversen: The amendment from the Senate was to change 75% to 25%.
Chairman Weisz: It was amended.

John Vastag: The original intent of the bill was for 75% to come from loan, and 25%
coming from other sources. It started out with $150 million.

Rep. Mooney: Do we want to put it back to the 75/25 as originally intended?

John Vastag: It would be wonderful if you did that.

Chairman Weisz: Assuming the $12 million stayed, would you want it still want it to be
75%? You will go through the money faster, and it will limit the number of projects.

John Vastag: [f it stays at $12 million, we looked at the prospect of using those dollars to
buy down interest rates at local banks. In that case we would want to limit it to about
$3,000,000 per loan.
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20:58

Andy Peterson, Greater North Dakota Chamber of Commerce, and also representing
the North Dakota Petroleum Council, testified in support of the bill. We recognize the
needs out there. This is not just an oil country issue, it is a statewide issue. Last summer
we participated in a project called 2020 and Beyond. It was about where North Dakota
needs to be in the year 2020 and beyond that. Some of the issues that came up were child
care, housing, and health care. These issues came up in all parts of the state. Heath care,
especially in the rural areas, is becoming a great concern.

24.09

Jerry E. Jurena, President of ND Hospital Association, testified in support of the bill.
(See Testimony #3) (Handed out testimony from Daniel Kelly, CEO McKenzie County
Health Care System. See Testimony #4)

Rep. Porter: In the first part of the session we had a discussion about the bad debt
situation, negative cash flows, and the crisis side of oil impacted rural health facilities.
Based on that conversation, what would they use to pay these loans back? How would
they qualify with a negative cash flow?

Jerry E. Jurena: There are a number of processes. They would go to their communities
and ask for tax support. They could maybe make it work with and a low interest loan
program. Also with the increase volume of services they have, there are reimbursements in
Medicare and Medicaid for the construction process in the billing process.

Rep. Mooney: This bill does not limit to just western part of state does it, and are you
finding out that there is a need in non-oil impact areas of North Dakota as well?

Jerry E. Jurena: There is need to capital dollars no matter what part of the state you are
in. This is specifically for the oil producing counties of the state.

30:20

Darrold Bertsch, CEO of Sakakawea Medical Center in Beulah, testified in support of
the bill. (See Testimony #5) We will also be doing a renovation to our emergency room.
42(Also handed out testimony of Becky Hansen CEO of Southwest Healthcare Services
in Bowman. See Testimony #6)

33:00

Chairman Weisz requested that Senator J. Lee answer a question. We had a discussion
about the 75% that was dropped to 25%. From your committee's perspective if the number
stayed at $12 million, would you still want that percent to go to 75%?

Sen. J. Lee: We felt strongly that 25% was not going to be adequate for the facilities that
need it. It is the access to larger amounts of capital is the need here. It does have to be
repayable, and they have to be able to demonstrate that their business plan is workable.
We did not favor that change in the policy committee.
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Chairman Weisz: Sheldon Wolf, (Director of Health Information Technology of North
Dakota) can you give us an update on how the HIT loan program worked that went through
the Bank of North Dakota? In some ways this is the same.

Sheldon Wolf: Director of Health Information Technology of North Dakota: The loan
program that you are referring to is the Health Information Technology Loan Fund. Two
biennia ago $5 million dollars went into that fund. Last biennium there was another $5
million added. We loan that out with a ten year payback period, with 1%. It has been
working very well. We have over $10 million dollars loaned out, and the money is coming
in. We are currently sitting on about $500,000 in a revolving loan fund. It is open through
the end of this week. A lot of the critical access hospitals and clinics have received the
money to meet meaningful use. A couple of the facilities that we loaned money to were the
first in the state to meet meaningful use requirements. It has worked out very well. In
some of the cases, when they meet meaningful use the federal government provides them
with additional money. Then they can use that money to pay their loan back.

On page 2, line 7, it indicates the big hospitals, is that what is meant?

Bob Humann: Senior Vice President of Lending, Bank of ND: We have been working
with this group and trying to craft a program that would work for them. If you look at some
of the numbers that have been presented, 25% is not going to meet their needs. |
recommend that this be raised back up to $75 million and raising the dollar amount back to
$10 million. 1 would also recommend that the percentage of the project cost be looked at.
It really limits the amount of loan dollars that the facilities are able to tap. Our role would be
to approve these applications and to service the loans over the twenty-five year period.

Chairman Weisz: Would you require a lead lender on each of these?
Bob Humann: There would not be a lead lender the way this is put together.
Rep. Laning: Would the bank consider up to $75 million of loan funds?

Bob Humaan: We could come up with $75 million dollars. We would not want to lock the
interest rate at 1% for twenty-five years. Eventually the interest rates are going to climb,
and we are not going to be able to generate any profits at 1%. The medical infrastructure
would be a fund that the bank would administer, that would off balance (inaudible) of the
bank. The reason for that is that some of these will be riskier loans. Repayment might be
tough until we see some changes in the way the medical providers are reimbursed. It is a
matter if the legislature wants to take $75 million out of the SIIF and make it available for
medical infrastructure.

Rep. Silbernagel: If you had a pool fund of $75 million with a maximum of $10 million per
project, and a 50/50 split, would that be more appropriate to meeting some of those project
needs?

Bob Humann: It would be. You do have a number of facilities that will not even get to the
$10 million figure. The larger ones will have to come up with some way to come up with
the additional funding.
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Rep. Fehr: If we stay with the current version of funding 25%, wouldn't there have to be a
lead lender?

Bob Humann: |t depends on the scenario. If it is $10 million per project that they can
finance 75% of the project, they then would only have to come up with 25%. |f a borrower
needed $15 million dollars, and the maximum they can get from the program is $10 million,
they would have to borrow the additional $5 million dollars if they couldn't come up with it.
In a lot of cases there may be more than one lender. Most of the ones that we see in these
projects will be bonding versus a lead lender. Bank of North Dakota has the ability to not
use a lead lender with these special funds as long as they are put together by the
legislature. There are other funds like this where the applications are made directly to the
bank.

Rep. Fehr: If we leave this at 25% won't there be a lead lender.

Chairman Weisz: They don't require a lead lender, but there might be one for this loan
program.

Bob Humann: That is correct. If you are going to look at additional dollars ($75 million), it
makes more sense to change the percentage of the project costs so that you tap into more
of these facilities so you can spread the money out more. If you use fewer dollars, then
you will want to do less of the project costs. It will put more financial burden on the
hospitals to come up with more of the project costs.

Rep. Mooney: What is a SIIF fund?

Bob Humann: Thatis Strategic Improvement and Investment Fund that is administered by
the former State Land Department.

There was no further testimony on SB 2187.
The hearing was closed on SB 2187.
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Bill Carrier: Rep. Anderson



13.0505.07000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
01/24/2013

Amendment to: SB 2187

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues
Expenditures
Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium

'| Counties

Cities
School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

All costs to administer and audit the proposed Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Program will be paid out of the
program fund and there will not be any fiscal impact to the General Fund.

B. Fiscalimpact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact, Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.
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13.0505.03002 Adopted by the Human Services Committee
Title.04000

April 1, 2013
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187

Page 2, line 7, remove "and to applicants that are prospective payment system hospitals that
receive"

Page 2, line 8, remove "trauma patients from oil producing counties"

Page 2, line 10, replace "three" with "fifteen"

Page 2, line 10, replace "twenty-five" with "seventy-five"
Page 4, line 21, replace "$12,000,000" with "$100,000,000"
Page 4, line 30, replace "2017" with "2013"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 13.0505.03002
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House Appropriations Committee
Roughrider Room, State Capitol

SB 2187
4/4/13
Job #20902

[] Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature ﬁ/h’u-’f M

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 6-09-47 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a Bank of North Dakota medical facility infrastructure loan program; to amend
and reenact section 6-09-47 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the medical
facility infrastructure loan program; to provide for transfer; to provide an appropriation; to
provide a continuing appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: Attached amendments .03003 #1.

Rep. Robin Weisz, District 14: Introduced the bill. This bill helps finance hospital
construction programs especially in the oil impacted counties. This is administered to the
Bank of North Dakota. There is a 1% interest rate that would allow a maximum of $15
million or 75% of the program cost. The construction has to be for 30 years; it's supposed
to have a minimum of a 30 year life with a 25 year loan repayment program. The money
comes out of the strategic investment and improvements fund; the repayment goes back
into this fund including the interest paid on the project. There is a procedure set up that
indicates the parties have to do construction within two years. The governor is supposed to
establish a task force to review the loan applications and make recommendations to the
bank. | think the bill provides a fair amount of protection for the bank and for the state.

02:50

Chairman Delzer: Your loan repayment comes back to the SIF (strategic investment fund)
where the money originally comes from? What does the bank get for processing these
loans?

Rep. Weisz: The bank is able to take appropriate administration fees.

Rep. Skarphol: Page 4 lines 16-18.

Rep. Weisz: Those costs will be deducted and the principal and interest of any payments
back then would go into the fund.

Chairman Delzer: Did you ask the bank what they normally take?
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Rep. Weisz: We did not. My understanding is the fees would be minimal.

Chairman Delzer: The question is whether or not the SIF would ever get its money back
totally if the 1% is not enough to cover the bank fees.

Rep. Weisz: They indicated the 1% covers the bank fees, but it doesn't cover the risk. A
question was asked if the bank should just loan the money and the bank said that at 1% it
wasn't going to cover the risk plus their fees.

Chairman Delzer: Is there any security required for these loans?
Rep. Weisz: That would be established by the rules that are set up here by the bank.

Chairman Delzer: How did you come up with the 15M and 75%? The 75% seems a little
high to me with a 1% loan.

Rep. Weisz: The Senate had come to similar numbers. After discussion with the hospitals,
it became apparent you had to have it to make enough difference between getting a 4%
loan and a 1% loan. At leastyou have a 25% equity stake in there.

Chairman Delzer: Are these first mortgages, or can they borrow the 25% from a local bank
if they can talk them into it then borrow this 75% from this fund?

Rep. Weisz: These are not loan guarantees; in reality, they are a first mortgage. If they
can go out and borrow the balance they would be free to do so.

Chairman Delzer: There's nothing in the bill that says it needs to be a first mortgage on the
facility.

Rep. Weisz: No there isn't but | can't imagine that a bank would do that. This isn't a loan
guarantee so they are not backing a loan through a principal lending. There is no primary
lender required under this bill.

Chairman Delzer: | know you are kind of mirroring the school financing one; did you do
any checking on whether there is any security there? Representative Sanford, you've been
part of one of these loans so was there any security in that process when you borrowed
from that coal severance?

Rep. Sanford: There was and that is you have an approved mill levy either through a
building fund or through your general fund that the bank uses as security for that.

Chairman Delzer: For the school that would be the case, but for a hospital there isn't any
taxing authority that I'm aware of.

Rep. Weisz: The bank indicated they would use those same requirements, there would
have to be a source of repayment. In most cases it would require a mill levy or some other
source of funds.
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Rep. Kempenich: In most cases the communities are already committing local tax dollars
to help run these. It wouldn’t be a new concept to them. Usually it's part of the sales tax
they collect. Just about every community has some type of local tax match.

Rep. Skarphol: The original coal tax school loan program only let schools borrow whatever
revenue they were receiving in coal taxes would cover the cost of the loan. The coal taxes
that community was collecting went to repay the loan until a loan was repaid. That was the
original design of the coal tax repayment program.

Chairman Delzer. We changed that a few biennia ago and expanded that statewide |
believe.

Rep. Skarphol: As | read this, an entity can borrow up to $15M as a maximum?
Rep. Weisz: Correct.

Chairman Delzer: Do you feel those numbers are pretty solid and this committee should
not deal with them; the maximum and the percentage?

Rep. Weisz: | think the maximum has some room; if you get a number too low it won't be
worth it to apply to this program. It has to be a level effective for a wide range of projects.
We had lots of discussion on the 75%; the committee believed that level gives them that
ability to cash-flow that construction, expansion, or remodel.

11:20

Chairman Delzer: In your discussion, how many entities were there acting like they wanted
to get something from this?

Rep. Weisz: There were 6 or 7 that would be applying tomorrow if this went into effect.
Chairman Delzer: This is keyed for the western part of the state, or not?

Rep. Weisz: It's statewide, but priority must be given to oil producing counties.

Chairman Delzer: Is there anything that says there's a certain date to apply then they are
all looked at competitively or is it a first come?

Rep. Weisz: It would be first come first served.
Chairman Delzer: Was there much discussion about a window of time to review these?

Rep. Weisz: No, the majority of the need is in the oil producing counties for expansion and
remodeling. Itis open to facilities that have a need in the other counties.

Chairman Delzer: Is there a sunset? | see in here that it's continually appropriated. To me,
that means it might last longer than two years?
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Rep. Weisz: The appropriation is good from July 1 2013 to 2015. The effective date or the
terms of the program goes through 2043, so that's covering, in essence, the loan
repayment program. By 2017, any funds remaining unspent have to go back into the
strategic investment fund.

Chairman Delzer: You did that so that there would be two years from July 1, 2015 which
is the end date of your appropriation?

Rep. Weisz: They have until 2015 to get the loan, and 2017 to do the building. After that,
the money goes back in the SIF and is gone.

Chairman Delzer: Do they just need to be under construction, or completed before they
get the money?

Rep. Weisz: | would assume they'll get the money once it's approved before they start
construction. The recipient of the loan must complete the construction within 24 months of
approval of the loan. Failure to comply could result in forfeiture of the entire loan received.
This is to make sure that once you get the loan you can't just sit on it and years down the
road you start the construction.

Rep. Kempenich: They can't invest the funds?
Rep. Weisz: Right.

Rep. Skarphol: What if a facility wants to do a $25M project? They can borrow $15M here;
if the other $10M is borrowed from a local bank then there is no definition of the position of
the Bank of North Dakota with regard to that. With a local bank you would also want first
position.

Rep. Weisz: | would assume that.

Rep. Glassheim: Going back to the oil producing counties on page 2 at the top, this says
the criteria must give priority so does that mean the only way to get the money is to be in
an oil producing county?

Rep. Weisz: The bill is intended to be primarily for oil producing counties. If the funds aren't
all allocated, it doesn't eliminate someone from elsewhere in the state that meets the
criteria to qualify. It's not exclusive.

Rep. Kreidt: Regarding the financing, if you are looking at a $25M project and secure
$15M of it, you'd probably have to do a municipal bond to do the rest of that project. You
probably wouldn't find a bank that would borrow you $10M.

Rep. Kempenich: min 20:00 If it cashflows at $25M and they want more then the
community will have to get involved because if there's a bank in front of the state the state
is going to know that up front and look at it accordingly. If this piece is in front of a bank it's
going to be the same conversation. | don't think there would be a conflict if someone gets
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behind on it because this is going to be a key piece in getting any of these projects off the
ground. A private bank loan is going to probably be the last step.

Chairman Delzer: The way this is set up, does the bank have the authority to reject the
loan if the task force approves the loan?

Rep. Weisz: | believe under the language | would say they would.

Rep. Skarphol: Page 2 line 12 it says must provide a repayment schedule no longer than
25 years. While there is an oil county connection on a task force there is really no provision
that requires there be any preference given to oil counties that | can see in the bill. The
only connection | see is that there must be a member from the oil producing counties in the
state.

Rep. Weisz: On page 2 lines 5 and 6 states they must give priority to applicants that are
located in oil producing counties.

Rep. Nelson: min 23:00. With cost reimbursement for hospitals, this is a tool that could be
used by hospitals across the state because with the level of reimbursement in many cases
you're looking at Medicaid reimbursement that is 60-80% of your business model. With a
new facility or part of a facility the depreciation that is no longer being used in an older
facility can now be used and your reimbursement model goes up and that's what cashflows
these projects. | think we're over thinking this.

Rep. Weisz: Distributed amendments .03003 and reviewed. See attached amendments
#1. We're taking this money out of the $200M pool that is also being used for school
construction programs. It's saying that if there is $100M then it will go for this.

Chairman Delzer: That's part of that fund being set up in 1319.

Rep. Weisz: Correct.

Chairman Delzer: You're trying to protect us so that it isn't $200M and $100M for this.
What about putting in a reporting requirement to the budget section or to the next legislative
session?

Rep. Weisz: We would be fine with that.

Chairman Delzer: Further questions? Thank you.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A Bill for an Act to create and enact section 6-09-47 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a Bank of North Dakota medical facility infrastructure loan program; to amend
and reenact section 6-09-47 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the medical
facility infrastructure loan program; to provide for transfer; to provide an appropriation; to
provide a continuing appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: Attached amendments .03003 and .03004

Chairman Delzer: This bill deals with loans. With the way the house brought amendments
in we have a new bill that creates a loan program with a maximum of $15 million or 75% of
the project for hospitals. It's supposed to be in essence for hospital buildings and in the oil
field. There may be some concerns on the language in the bill that looks at them doing
these one at a time as compared to a time frame and approval at a certain time. This is my
concern. If you do them one at a time it's a first come first serve so you don't have the
essence of whether you're going out to the area that seems to be going through the growth
on the emergency rooms and things as compared to the rest of the state. We may need to
have discussion on whether or not we think 75% of the total project is right. | guess the
$15 million is the maximum of both. What are your wishes?

Rep. Kempenich: This is an issue. It's targeted at smaller communities; the way it is
worded, the $15M will be the key to getting it started. | don't think banks or anybody else
will get involved and it's going to be more of what the local community does with it. | think
that will be the driving force. It's either going to be used or it's going to go back. | don't
think there is a lot of grey area in how it's going to get used.

Chairman Delzer. We did have an amendment offered by the policy committee that deals
with the language to put in there that makes sure this was part of the $200M that resides in
1319 instead of on top of that. | know | couldn't support the bill without that being part of it.
Rep. Kempenich moved amendment .03003.

Chairman Delzer: The amendment puts the contingent word in there that says it has to be
part of the $200M that currently resides in 1319. They could only have $100M of that
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$200M for the school loan program along with the $50M that resides in the coal severance
fund so there would be $150 for schools and $100M for this hospital. I've got a note on
here to report to the budget section on the usage of this money.

Rep. Kempenich: Also amend to include a requirement to report to the next
legislative assembly.

Rep. Kreidt: Seconded.
Rep. Wieland: I'd like to know what communities realistically expect to use these funds.

Chairman Delzer: | think Tioga might be one, Watford City, and Bowman is in the process
of building one already.

Rep. Wieland: There is going to have to be money in those communities to make this
work.

Chairman Delzer: We don't want to open this up as a hearing but, Jerry, do you have
those communities you think are most likely to do this?

Jerry Jurena, President of the Hospital Association: Watford City, Tioga, Stanley,
Bowman, Hazen are four of the six that said they would like money for projects.

Chairman Delzer: Is that money for projects for expansion of their emergency room or are
they totally rebuilding their hospitals?

Jerry Jurena: Bowman and Watford City are looking at total projects; new hospitals.
Chairman Delzer: We may wantto consider that. In discussion the other day Rep. Nelson
said the keys to this from the hospital standpoint is the depreciation goes back into this so
they kind of get paid back.

Rep. Monson: | see a minimum of $1M in here for the project but I'm not finding a
maximum.

Chairman Delzer: Do not exceed the lesser of $15M or 75% of the actual cost of the
project.

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRIES TO ACCEPT AMENDMENT .03003.
Rep. Kempenich: Made a motion for a Do Pass as Amended.

Rep. Sanford: Seconded.

Rep. Bellew: Why does this need to be a continuing appropriation?

Chairman Delzer: You would need this continuing appropriation because this is a loan
project that allows them to loan this money and have the money come back in and returned
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to the SIF fund which is a 30 year payback. The loan would be there as long as there is
money to loan. The money does not come back to this same fund. The return money all
goes back to the SIF fund so it should be capped at $100M. When $100M runs out it is not
a revolving loan; it should be a solid loan fund of $100M. The expiration date in section 4
of this act is through 2017 which is another reason you would need the continuing
appropriation to get away from the return language. It needs to be 2017 because they
figure it would take almost a year and a half to design these and get the application through
then they had two years to start the project after that which puts it with an effective date of
July 31, 2017. The loan program would be limited to the $100M to July 31, 2017 that they
would have to be completed on the project.

ROLL CALL VOTE: 16§ YES 5§NO 2 ABSENT
MOTION CARRIES AS A DO PASS AS AMENDED.

Rep. Kempenich will carry this bill.
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Amendment to: SB 2187

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues
Expenditures
Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium

'| Counties

Cities
School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

All costs to administer and audit the proposed Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Program will be paid out of the
program fund and there will not be any fiscal impact to the General Fund.

B. Fiscalimpact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact, Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 1175 of the House
Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2187 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 4, replace "an" with "a contingent"
Page 1, line 5, after the second semicolon insert "to provide for a report;"

Page 2, line 7, remove "and to applicants that are prospective payment system hospitals that
receive"

" Page 2, line 8, remove "trauma patients from oil-producing counties"

Page 2, line 10, replace "three" with "fifteen"

Page 2, line 10, replace "twenty-five" with "seventy-five"

A

Page 3, line 23, remove " i v
ot onts f ) o o

Page 3, line 26, replace "three" with "fifteen"

Page 3, line 26, replace "twenty-five" with "seventy-five"

Page 4, line 19, after "3." insert "CONTINGENT"

Page 4, line 19, replace "There" with "If the board of university and school lands confirms that it
will authorize no more than $100,000,000 from the strategic investment and
improvements fund to provide school construction projects under section 15.1-36-02,
there"

Page 4, line 21, replace "$12,000,000" with "$100,000,000"
Page 4, line 28, replace "30" with "31"
Page 4, after line 29, insert:

"SECTION 5. REPORT TO SIXTY-FOURTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The
Bank of North Dakota shall report to the sixty-fourth legislative assembly on the status
of the loan program provided for in this Act."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:
Senate Bill No. 2187 - Bank of North Dakota - House Action

Executive Senate House House

Budget Version Changes Version
Medical facility infrastructure $12,000,000 $88,000,000 $100,000,000

loans

Total all funds $0 $12,000,000 $88,000,000 $100,000,000
Less estimated income 0 12,000,000 88,000,000 100,000,000
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page No. 1



243

Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding Total House
for Loans' Changes
Medical facility infrastructure $88,000,000 $88,000,000
loans
Total all funds $88,000,000 $88,000,000
Less estimated income 88,000,000 88,000,000
General fund $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00

' This amendment increases the funding for medical facility infrastructure loans from $12 million to
$100 million, all of which is from the strategic investment and improvements fund. The funding is
contingent on the Department of Trust Lands confirming that it will authorize no more than $100 million
from the strategic investment and improvements fund for school construction project loans.

This amendment also requires the Bank of North Dakota to report on the status of the medical facility
infrastructure loan program to the 64" Legislative Assembly.

Page No. 2
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Legislative Council Amendment Number , 03003

Action Taken: [] DoPass [ ] DoNotPass [ ] Amended [X] Adopt Amendment

[] Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider
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Chairman Delzer Rep. Streyle

Vice Chairman Kempenich Rep. Thoreson
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Rep. Brandenburg

Rep. Dosch
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Rep. Hawken Rep. Glassheim

Rep. Kreidt Rep. Guggisberg

Rep. Martinson Rep. Holman

Rep. Monson Rep. Williams

Rep. Nelson

Rep. Pollert

Rep. Sanford

Rep. Skarphol

Total Yes No

Absent
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Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Delzer X | Rep. Streyle X
Vice Chairman Kempenich Y Rep. Thoreson X |
Rep. Bellew X Rep. Wieland X
Rep. Brandenburg Y
Rep. Dosch X
Rep. Grande ¥ Rep. Boe
Rep. Hawken Y Rep. Glassheim X
Rep. Kreidt Y Rep. Guggisberg X
Rep. Martinson Y Rep. Holman )'d
Rep. Monson X Rep. Williams )

Rep. Nelson Y |

Rep. Pollert X

Rep. Sanford X

Rep. Skarphol X
Total Yes , S No S
Absent L
Floor Assignment 4-@/ KQ,{MIMM i(,l/\‘
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Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_62_009
April 8, 2013 2:06pm Carrier: Kempenich
Insert LC: 13.0505.03004 Title: 05000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2187, as reengrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer,
Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended,
recommends DO PASS (15 YEAS, 5NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Reengrossed SB 2187, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 1175 of the House
Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2187 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 4, replace "an" with "a contingent"
Page 1, line 5, after the second semicolon insert "to provide for a report;"

Page 2, Iine.7, remove "and to applicants that are prospective payment system hospitals that
receive"

Page 2, line 8, remove "trauma patients from oil-producing counties"

Page 2, line 10, replace "three" with "fifteen"

Page 2, line 10, replace "twenty-five" with "seventy-five"

Page 3, line 23, remove "an ican 5 j
; . G : i ‘e Y=

Page 3, line 26, replace "three" with "fiftleer"

Page 3, line 26, replace "twenty-five" with "seventy-five"

Page 4, line 19, after "3." insert "CONTINGENT"

Page 4, line 19, replace "There" with "If the board of university and school lands confirms
that it will authorize no more than $100,000,000 from the strategic investment and
improvements fund to provide school construction projects under section 15.1-36-02,
there"

Page 4, line 21, replace "$12,000,000" with "$100,000,000"

Page 4, line 28, replace "30" with "31"

Page 4, after line 29, insert:

"SECTION 5. REPORT TO SIXTY-FOURTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The
Bank of North Dakota shall report to the sixty-fourth legislative assembly on the
status of the loan program provided for in this Act."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Bill No. 2187 - Bank of North Dakota - House Action

Executive Senate House House

Budget Version Changes Version
Medical facility infrastructure $12,000,000 $88,000,000 $100,000,000

loans

Total all funds $0 $12,000,000 $88,000,000 $100,000,000
Less estimated income 0 12,000,000 88,000,000 100,000,000
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_62_009
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Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding Total House
for Loans' Changes
Medical facility infrastructure $88,000,000 $88,000,000
loans

Total all funds $88,000,000 $88,000,000

Less estimated income 88,000,000 88,000,000
General fund $0 $0
FIE 000 0.00

' This amendment increases the funding for medical facility infrastructure loans from

$12 million to $100 million, all of which is from the strategic investment and improvements
fund. The funding is contingent on the Department of Trust Lands confirming that it will
authorize no more than $100 million from the strategic investment and improvements fund
for school construction project loans.

This amendment also requires the Bank of North Dakota to report on the status of the
medical facility infrastructure loan program to the 64" Legislative Assembly.

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_62_009
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The motion carries

Sen. Anderson closes the conference committee on SB 2187
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2014, as uncommitted school construction loans shall be transferred to the medical
facility infrastructure fund and is appropriated for the purpose of loans by the Bank of
North Dakota to provide medical facility infrastructure loans under section 1 of this
Act.

SECTION 3. BALANCE TRANSFER. The Bank of North Dakota shall
transfer any balance remaining in the medical facility infrastructure fund on July 31,
2017, to the state treasurer for deposit in the strategic investment and improvements
fund.

SECTION 4. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The Bank of North
Dakota shall report to the sixty-fourth and sixty-fifth legislative assemblies on the
status of the loan program provided for in this Act."

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed SB 2187 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 3 s_cfcomrep_77_004
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To address the primary challenges for health care delivery identified through this study, policymakers
will need to consider innovative programs to improve access to capital for the health care industry.
Potential solutions include expanding the oil impact grant program and/or establishing a streamlined,
low-or no-interest loan program for capital projects. Coordinating recommended solutions for the
remaining challenges would best be accomplished through an active task force involving health care
providers, policymakers, oil industry representatives and other business leaders.
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3. Convene a Governor’s task force to actively manage challenges and find

solutions.
e A task force focusing on health care in western North Dakota should be commissioned and
appointed by the governor. Suggested task force members include:
o Administrators from hospitals and health systems throughout North Dakota ;
o Representatives from the oil industry, with a focus on developing partnerships with the
health care industry and rural communities; and
o Representatives from other stakeholder organizations including the long-term care
industry, EMS professionals, elected officials and business leaders.

e The task force would assist the governor in setting parameters for low- or no-interest loan
programs and the expansion/restructuring of Oil Impact Grants.

e The task fprce would provide ongoing advice to the governor as health care needs of the .
population in western North Dakota continue to evolve.
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Testimony

enate Bill 2187

Senate Appropriations

TWW 31,2013

Good Morning Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate
Appropriations Committee. For the record, my name i
and | serve as the Executive Director for the Health Policy Consortium
which is made up of Trinity Health Systems, Altru Health Systems, and
Sanford Health Systems throughout ND.

| am before you today in support of SB 2187 and to give you some
background on how this particular bill came about.

December 9, 2011—Governor Dalrymple attended our quarterly HPC
meeting in Grand Forks. While there he listened to concerns from our
members that the oil development was having on their day to day

operations.

 The governor encouraged the members of HPC to think outside the box
and to consider applying for funds through the Land Grant Fund
program. Med Center One attempted to work with the political
subdivisions in Dickinson to secure funding for their new clinic. They
were unsuccessful in finding a political subdivision to coordinate the
application with.



We had one request for the governor, to host a joint meeting with
representatives from the oil industry and the health care industry.

On January 23, 2012 the governor was gracious enough to host the
joint oil industry/health care meeting. The meeting was attended by
representatives from a broad spectrum of the healthcare industry, the
insurance industry, and the oil industry. There was an excellent
exchange of information, however it was concluded that although there
was a lot of information, there was no formal data to support the
concerns noted. k

The Health Policy Consortium indicated they would check with their
members to have an Oil Impact Study completed. At their January
meeting, the members of HPC unanimously agreed to pay for the study.

The Oil Impact Study was completed during the late spring and over the
summer of 2012.

On September 26, 2012 representatives from HPC, NDHA, and the Qil
Industry presented the findings of the study to the Lt. Governor, the
Governor’s Chief of Staff and the Governor’s Health Policy Advisor.

The Governor’s Chief of Staff recommended that we convene a larger
group to discuss the findings and potential solutions to the challenges
noted in the study.

On October 26, 2012 an Oil Impact meeting was held in Bismarck with
the following in attendance: Oil Industry representatives, Health Care
representatives, representatives from a majority of the departments
within State government such as WSI, DHS,DOH, OMB and others.



Although the study contained three recommendations, the major focus
"was on the low interest loan program.

For most service oriented industries, the increase in demand has made
a significant positive impact to their bottom line. That is not necessarily
the case for the healthcare industry. In fact it has proven to be just the
opposite. A combination of being under reimbursed by Medicare for
nearly twenty years, combined with a significant influx of patients who
do not necessarily pay their bills timely has caused the financial
statements of the local healthcare facilities to be less than desirable for
local lending institutions to provide loans at rates the facilities can
effectively mange.

The facilities are having to spend whatever reserves they may have on
increased staffing costs, contract staff, housing and increased costs of

supplies and materials.

Prior to the last Qil Impact meeting, NDHA conducted a survey that
indicated there were eleven facilities that had “shovel ready” projects
totaling $160--5200 million.

Therefore the bill before you was developed with significant input from
OMB and the staff at the bank of North Dakota. The original daft had a
60-40 split with a 20 year payback. After receiving feedback from the
interested facilities, they felt the split was too high and the payback
period too short. Therefore, the original draft was amended to a 75-25
split with a 25 year payback.

The net result of this is that it has created an access issue. Although the
facilities have done a very good job of expanding their service hours to
evenings and week-ends, they simply cannot keep up with the demand



in their current infrastructures. Thus their patients are unwilling to
wait several days or weeks to for an appointment and go to the ER’s

because they know they have to be seen.

This creates two problems, 1) It takes up precious ER time for services
that do not necessarily require ER services, and 2) it costs all of us more
money to provide those services in ER.

Therefore in order to improve the access issues currently facing the
facilities, they need to expand their infrastructure so they can provide
more space for more practitioners to see more patients.

Therefore, | strongly encourage you to support SB 2187 with a DO PASS
recommendation.

Thank you for your time and | would be happy to answer any questions
the committee may have.

Respectfully; o ,

=2/ Yot

John Vastag
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Introduction

Acrosswestern North Dakota, an oil boom is in full swing, prompted by horizontal drilling and hydraulic
fracturing to extract oil resources trapped within the Bakken Formation. More than 200 oil rigs are
currently at work in North Dakota. Oil output has more than doubled in two years and jumped five-fold
since 2006. North Dakota recently surpassed Alaska as the nation’s second-largest oil producer and
accounts for about 10 percent ofU.S. crude production. The oil boom hasbeen good for North Dakota,
creating an unprecedented budget surplus, low unemployment figures and significant wealth for the
state at a time when many other states are struggling with budget deficits.

The oil boom has also presented several challenges, including housing shortages, an explosion of heavy
truck traffic and competition for human resources. It is also threatening to overwhelm the state’s health
care infrastructure which was not designed to accommodate such a rapid increase in population.

The Health Policy Consortium (HPC), in cooperation with health care providers across North Dakota,
engaged Himle Rapp & Company to conduct qualitative and quantitative research on the impact of the
oil boom on health care facilities and providers in western North Dakota. The goal of the research is to
capture the scope of the problem and develop valuable recommendations to present to policymakers
and others regarding the health care issues facing North Dakota.
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Executive Summary

Technological advancements for oil extraction and the ensuing development of the Bakken Region is
causing rapid population growth in many western North Dakota communities. Small hospitals and clinics
have traditionally served the health care needs of residents in these affected communities. While
providing high quality health care, two-thirds of the smaller facilities located in rural areas of the state
report operating losses in two of the last three years. Until the beginning of the oil boom, these facilities
were not poised for rapid expansion to accommodate an influx of new residents.

Population growth over the last few years is straining the health care system in western North Dakota.
Absent a coordinated, comprehensive response to current and future challenges, continued population
growth will jeopardize existing access to quality health care services in many communities.

Staff Recruitment and Workforce Development

Health care is a labor-intensive industry, meaning labor expenses typically far outweigh capital
expenses. Hospitals and clinics in the Bakken Region have redoubled their efforts at staff recruitment to
meet the growing demand for patient care. Despite their best efforts, external obstacles such as lack of
available or affordable housing and daycare combined with hyper-competitive wages available in other
industries are limiting hospitals’ ability to attract new staff. Retention of existing employees has become
a growing challenge as the situation is placing unprecedented demands on the existing workforce.

Capacity for Care Delivery

The influx of new residents has resulted in a growing number of new patients seeking primary care
services in clinic settings. Existing capacity has not kept pace with the rate of population growth and
clinics are no longer able to satisfy skyrocketing patient demand. Difficulty accessing clinical care in a
timely fashion is prompting patients to seek care in the emergency room for what would otherwise be a
routine checkup. This, combined with an increase in traffic accidents and other trauma, is overwhelming
emergency rooms that are simply not equipped to handle the volume of patients they are currently
receiving.

Financial Viability

A multitude of factors have negatively impacted the financial health of many hospitals and clinics,
threatening their long-term viability. Facilities that have historically operated on slim margins in rural
communities are having difficulty accessing capital on the private market to fund necessary expansion
and renovation of facilities. Bad debt levels have grown at a staggering rate as hospitals are seeing more
uninsured patients who are either unwilling or unable to pay their bills. Finally, competition from all
economic sectors is driving up costs for services and workforce, placing additional pressure on stressed
budgets.

Growing Public Health Concerns

The oil boom and accompanying population growth has created new public health concerns in western
North Dakota that have exacerbated the strain on the existing health care infrastructure. For example,
there has been a dramatic increase in the incidence of sexually transmitted diseases, which is creating
additional demand for primary care services. Further, rising numbers of traffic accidents and incidences
of violence resulting in trauma have caused an unprecedented number of emergency room visits at

affected facilities.
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To address the primary challenges for health care delivery identified through this study, policymakers
will need to consider innovative programs to improve access to capital for the health care industry.
Potential solutions include expanding the oil impact grant program and/or establishing a streamlined,
low-or no-interest loan program for capital projects. Coordinating recommended solutions for the
remaining challenges would best be accomplished through an active task force involving health care
providers, policymakers, oil industry representatives and other business leaders.
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General Observations

1.

The oil boom is good for North Dakota.

Despite numerous challenges presented by the oil boom, health care providers in North Dakota
overwhelmingly agreed that the oil boom has had a positive impact on the state economy.
e The oil boom has created many high-paying jobs, produced record-setting employment figures
and produced significant wealth for many land and business owners.
e Tax revenues on oil production have positioned North Dakota as one of few states with a
significant budget surplus during a time when the rest of the country is suffering from high

unemployment rates and budget deficits.

Hospitals and clinics in western North Dakota are
significantly strained by the demand from the
growing population.

e Quality health care is still being delivered, but
access to care is deteriorating and facilities
cannot sustain continued pressure.

e Patient demand for services has dramatically
increased over the past 24 months.

e The incoming workforce is presenting unique
and severe health issues.

Hospitals and clinics in North Dakota are not structured
to accommodate an increase in demand this quickly.
The biggest challenge for those impacted by the oil

(’

“It [the oil boom] has resulted in

debt for hospitals.”

.

surplus funds, bringing attention and
employment to North Dakota, long-
term benefit. It’s an enviable position.
The issue is that it caught us off guard.
The economy is great; the oil boom is
wonderful — very positive. But rapid
progress has a price. There are bad
sides to it such as ER issues and bad

- Dean Mattern, CEO
Garrison Memorial Hospital, Garrison

\

~

industry’s rapid growth is to find resources and solutions required to keep pace with demand. The
oil boom has greatly accelerated the need for health care infrastructure and most rural hospitals
have the need for immediate expansion of both infrastructure and capacity to provide care.

Immediate and short-term challenges must be addressed to maintain high-quality health care.

North Dakota hospitals and clinics are facing numerous immediate and short-term challenges,
including financial, housing and staffing crises. In addition, heath care providers are straining to
provide primary, urgent and emergency care efficiently due to the growth in demand.

Hospitals are balancing long-term planning against uncertain future growth,

Although sources predict the oil boom could continue for another 30 years, most hospital
administrators are uncertain of the future rate of growth in their areas. Planning for the
contingencies that come with growth and contraction is critical to the success of the hospitals and

clinics = and for the health of North Dakotans.
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Geography of the OQil Boom

There are two primary categories of facilities that have been most affected by the oil boom. The first
category includes facilities located within the Bakken Formation that are directly impacted by the
population growth and subsequent rise in demand for care services. Hospitals and clinics located in
Williston, Watford City, Tioga, Stanley, Dickinson and Minot are experiencing the greatest impacts. Most
facilities in these service areas are struggling to manage and care for the growing population.

In some areas, including the Tioga service area, the population has more than tripled due to the influx of
oil workers and “crew camps,” which, in turn, has caused the demand for health care to skyrocket.
Williston has experienced similarly staggering population growth, but is fortunate to have a $30 million
expansion underway. Administrators in Williston were able to secure needed capital and already had the
infrastructure in place to satisfy the growing demand. They are also benefitting from oil industry

assistance.

A second group of facilities exist on the border of the Bakken Formation and are experiencing a spillover
effect. Many hospitals and clinics on the fringe of the oil development are currently managing demand,
but are braced for a dramatic increase and see the need to problem-solve now. For example, Garrison
and Crosby are experiencing some of the strain and tightness on housing, but not to the extent that
Tioga and Watford City are experiencing. Bottineau is targeted as the next area for drilling and is
currently experiencing moderate impact and expects to experience a significant increase in demand for
service in the very near future.

NORTH DAKOTA

b Willision
A
a

«E

wHazen

& ® Holtingor

Key: . Western North Dakota Hospitals.-- High Impact Area. . Eastern North Dakota Hospitals

. Hospltals that are experiencing Spillover Effect : Bakken Formation
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—— ——— ——————
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Recruitment and Workforce Development

Unprecedented population growth in western ¢~ =~
North Dakota is generating unprecedented
demands on the existing health care workforce.
Despite aggressive and innovative approaches to
recruit physicians and support staff, hospitals and
clinics are unable to recruit or retain the staff
necessary to meet increased patient demand.
Several obstacles are hampering existing
recruitment efforts and this problem s
perpetuating the strain on existing clinical capacity
and contributing to rising costs as outlined in later
sections of this report. k .

“In Bismarck, we’re seeing direct impact from
the energy industry’s rapid growth. In
addition to increased demand for services,
we’re faced with growing staffing shortages.
In 2007, we averaged about 80 openings at
any given time. In 2012, we’ve had as many
as 200 openings at one time.”
- Dr. Craig Lambrecht, President and CEO
Sanford Medical Center Bismarck, Bismarck

Recruiting and retaining quality physicians has traditionally been a challenge for hospitals in rural
communities. According to the American Hospital Association, approximately 23 percent of the
population in the United States resides in non metropolitan areas, while only 13 percent of physicians
practice in these same areas, resulting in a highly competitive recruiting environment.

A majority of hospitals and clinics throughout North Dakota are investing more resources than ever to
recruit and retain mid- (primarily RNs) and entry-level staff (maintenance, CNAs, dietary, housekeeping)
with little success. The cost of these practices include not only dollars spent recruiting and retaining staff
but also time and energy invested in training and orienting new staff.

Data collected for this report revealed that

Percentage Increase for Recruitment the impact on recruitment costs is not
Spending by Hospital — 2007 vs. 2011 limited to the western half of the state.
Compared to 2007, the percentage change
in recruitment expenses at hospitals in
western North Dakota ranged from (-92%)
to 617%, compared with a range of 126%
to 287% for their eastern counterparts.
(One hospital reported a 40,000 percent
increase in recruiting costs between 2007
and 2011. This figure is not included in the
side chart as it is an outlier.) While the
trend in recruiting costs is not uniformly
consistent (two facilities reduced such
expenses), the dramatic increase in costs at
a majority of the facilities demonstrates the
significance of this challenge. Survey respondents reported that the level of competition for doctors, in
particular, has increased dramatically. For example, one hospital reported paying a $100,000 incentive
for a single physician to relocate to western North Dakota.

>
E

H 3 t c B N
Westerri ND-- High Impact Area
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Hospitals and clinics have altered recruiting and retention [ “We are trying to recruit aggressively
activities by: to avoid hiring traveling staff, sign on
. bonuses and wage increases. We have
* Increasing wages expanded our advertising to now
e Securing/offering housing (when available) include areas outside of the region. We
e Advertising nationally and internationally, instead of § /<0 gre using social media and a
locally or regionally national list serve, but when we find
* Using social media to reach prospective staff in new | someone who isinterested, housing is
ways anissue.”
e Working with staffing agencies to help access new — Gary Miller, President & CEO
employee pools, especially in areas of high St. Alexius Medical Center, Bismarc;

unemployment around the U.S.
e Working with education programs in North Dakota and other areas to recruit newly-trained and
homegrown professionals
e Recruiting family members of current employees, who already have a place to live, to circumvent
the housing issue
e Recruiting doctors through the National Health Service Corps, a U.S. Department of Human Services
program committed to improving access to health care in medically underserved regions
e Offering numerous accommodations including:
- Sign-on bonuses
- Retention bonuses
- Flexible scheduling
- Generous benefit packages
- Relocation packages
- Student loan repayment assistance

The limited success of such exhaustive efforts is the likely result of several common obstacles.

Lack of Affordable Housing

Respondents nearly unanimously voiced that the lack of affordable housing is the primary obstacle for
recruiting and retaining employees,
and the situation has worsened in
the past 12 to 18 months. This

Spending on Housing for Staff
by Hospital — 2007 vs. 2011

conundrum exists for all staff,
including medical staff, nursing staff Western D High Impact Area r——
and front-line, entry-level positions 20 iow o201
. . s 2oy = 2007
such as housekeeping, dietary and ;
maintenance workers. Prospective $550K
employees either cannot afford to |
live in the oil impacted areas or 3
housing is simply not available. ;
$150K '
. ! NoCost
t Reported
Currently, there are thousands of » P
housing units being built in western R =F it w e 1 = 7H R
A AL R
North Dakota - a partments, Western ND — High Impact Area | EasternND

townhouses and single-family
homes. The construction phase will be complete in most areas in approximately 18 months, but this is
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~ ~ not soon enough for the hospitals and clinics in
communities who need housing now. Many also note that

“I’'m in a position to take care of when new housing is built and available, it is not
people, not in a position to be a affordable.

landlord. But we are doing whatever

we can to help out staff and the Without available housing now, hospitals and clinics are
community with housing.” not able to recruit or retain staff to meet the demand.

- Reed Reyman, President and CEO § There is nearly unanimous agreement that the housing

St. Joseph’s Hospital, Dickinson § crisis is preventing hospitals and clinics from hiring the

" y staff necessary to support expanding operations to meet
the demand for care.

Many respondents report that once they successfully recruit an employee, they often cannot complete
the hire because the employee is unable to secure housing.

Hospitals and clinics have attempted to address the housing shortage with numerous short-term
solutions, creating additional financial burden for facilities. Many hospitals have taken a proactive
approach and are buying and building housing themselves. Others reported spending time fostering
relationships with building owners to reserve housing for incoming staff. Some hospitals have been able
to purchase and/or subsidize housing for staff, while others have converted existing hospital structures
into housing. Facilities in larger communities, such as Williston, are able to lease housing to secure it and
sub-lease it to employees without absorbing additional expense. Others report that even though they
have yet to purchase properties, the option is under consideration. These efforts are costing hospitals
and clinics significant time and money while providing little short-term relief. Many smaller facilities
with fewer resources have no existing options available to address the housing crisis.

Hyper-Competitive Wages

Percentage Increase in Nurse and Support

Staff Wages by Hospital — 2007 vs. 2011

One of the largest financial burdens for
hospitals and clinics regarding workforce
has been the need to increase wages.
Over the past four years, wages for
nurses and support staff at hospitals in
western North Dakota have increased at
a rate of 24 - 29 percent on average,
compared to 10 - 12 percent for their
eastern counterparts. Ballooning wages
have a direct impact on hospital
finances. Despite system-wide wage
increases, health care remains at a
significant disadvantage among other
employers in oil-producing communities.

Even with increasing wages, employees most often report that they leave their positions in health care
for more money elsewhere or because they no longer have to work due to oil revenue. The biggest
competitor for front-line staff comes from the oil industry and corollary businesses that have opened to
cater to the oil industry (restaurants, hotels, convenience stores, etc.) Many administrators noted that
they are unable to pay a competitive wage when compared to other employers because they are limited
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by their inability to increase prices for health services, while more conventional businesses are not
constricted in this way.

Availability and Affordability of Daycare

The lack of affordable and available daycare is another issue for North Dakota hospitals that is having a
direct impact on recruiting and retaining staff. Because daycare services are not available for staff,
additional employees are leaving their positions in health care, or decreasing their hours to care for their
child/children. In many situations it is more cost-effective for the employee to stay at home to carefor
their children than to pay for a daycare provider. This situation often prevents prospective staff from
relocating for employment in the oil impacted areas and is perpetuating the staffing shortage.

Deteriorating Working Conditions
~ =
“We are short-staffed every day. That causes

stress and burn out.”
- Dr. Scott Knutson, Assistant Medical Director,

Working Conditions are Worsening and are Further
I mpacting Staffing Challenges.

Staff burnout due to increased workload.

Th ioritv of dent t that their staff Emergency Trauma Center
e majority o re:spon ents rfepor at their s.a Trinity Health, Minot

members are feeling the strain of the population

boom. Staff at all levels is being asked to do more % .

and wear more “hats” to address the demand for care, including administrative work and training new
employees. Adding to employee burnout are longer hours, increased caseloads and more responsibility

for staff across-the-board.

Increased safety and security concerns.

Many respondents mentioned the need for increased security measures in their facilities to protect

patients and staff. Hospital administrators have included increased security measures to accommodate

concerns. Some administrators are taking proactive steps by limiting hospital entrances after regular

work hours, installing security cameras throughout the facility and inviting police to have a presence in

~ ~ the emergency room to address
increased traffic in facilities. Ensuring

“Part-time staff is being asked to do more and they are staff and patient safety has required
burned out. Morale is low. Staff wants more money. considerable time, energy and expense,
I've heard ‘My son graduated from high school and adding significant stress to hospital

makes more in the oil field than | do as an RN’ from more employees.

than one employee.”
- Shawn Smothers, Administrator The staffing crisis is impacting morale.

Trinity Kenmare Community Hospital || There are substantial organizational costs

S o« associated with this situation. Higher
turnover has greatly impacted the morale of entire hospital and clinic staffs, and many organizations
reported making increased efforts to maintain positive work environments. Many are attempting to
boost morale by giving “atta boys” to long-time staff and hosting employee recognition events and
gatherings. However, administrators are quick to recognize that these gestures are simply not enough to
sustain employee morale in the long-term.
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Capacity for Care Delivery

The delivery of health care services is being impacted by the population explosion and most hospitals
and clinics do not have the clinical capacity — or the emergency room capacity —to handle the increased
demand. Populations in western North Dakota’s hub health care communities — Williston, Dickinson,
Watford City and Minot — are projected to increase nearly 60 percent between now and 2020.
Collectively, these four communities are estimated to have nearly 100,000 residents (crew camps
included); city planners estimate that number will jump to 155,000 residents by 2020.

Percentage Increase in Clinic
Visits by Hospital — 2007 vs. 2011

Primary Care Clinics

Many clinics in the oil impact area are
operating at or above full capacity.
From 2007 to 2011, clinic visits in
western North Dakota increased at an
average rate of 13 percent, compared
to less than 1 percent in the eastern
half of the state. While this increase is
notably higher for facilities in the oil
impact area, this statistic is likely an
incomplete measure of the actual
demand for clinic services. Waiting . E M H B EDECHN A L e R a
periods for clinic appointments in this Western ND— High tmpact Area EesternND
area can be as long as three weeks
and many patients are unable to visit the clinic during normal business hours. Clinics are too short-
staffed to offer extended hours, causing patients to turn to the emergency room as an available
alternative — driving up costs for what would otherwise be routine physician visits.

Hospitals and clinics are streamlining workflow and clinic operations to become as efficient as possible.
However, such efforts can only accomplish so much. Clinics will need to invest capital in expanded
facilities and work to recruit additional staff to fully meet the growing demand for services.

Emergency Rooms
A variety of factors are combining to Average Percentage Increase in Emergency
overwhelm  hospital emergency
rooms in western North Dakota,
including higher instances of trauma 57%
injuries and a growing trend of i
patients seeking care for routine
illnesses in emergency rooms rather
than in a clinic setting.

Room Visits — 2007 vs. 2011

For example, Watford City has a one-
room emergency department and
one lightly-equipped  procedure .
room, yet is regularly receiving WesterriND— High ImpactArea EasternND
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multiple traumas at the same time. Recently, this hospital admitted 26 patients in one day, including
two car accidents with a total of six seriously injured patients. The facility simply cannot sustain this kind
of demand with existing infrastructure and staff.

Emergency rooms are not only experiencing an overall increase in visits but are also experiencing an
increase in the severity of injuries proximately caused by the oilindustry. Inthe heartofthe oil impacted
areas, hospitals are seeing more work-related traumas, including smashed hands and other crushing-
type injuries. Due to increases in traffic
patterns throughout western North
Dakota — largely attributed to the oil
boom — all hospitals reported seeing Traumas — 2007 vs. 2011
substantial increases in the number of
automobile accident injuries. These 94%
patients typically require emergency '
room attention and injuries are more
severe and much more frequent than
prior to the boom.

Average Percentage Increase in

As mentioned above, patients not
wanting to wait for a clinic visit, are
routinely over-utilizing and misusing .
émergency rooms for non-emergency Western ND~ High Impact Area stem
injuries and ailments. Some of the

misuse is occurring because clinic
appointments are not available for weeks and patients do not want to wait for care. Some of the misuse

can be attributed to clinic hours — and not being open after typical work hours when the patients can
access them. Other instances of misuse occur because patients cannot pay for the services they need
and will go to emergency rooms knowing they cannot be turned away due to federal regulations
requiring hospitals to administer emergency room care. This situation serves to exacerbate capacity and
staffing issues and adds to mounting financial problems for affected hospitals.

r N
“There’s a population explosion in the Tioga region. The man [crew] camps in this service area are
twice the size of the city. There are 2,500 people in the man camps and the population of Tioga is less
than 2,000. There’s a drastic increase in ER visits. In 2007, we had 600 visits. In 2012, we expect more
than 2,000.”
- Randall Pederson, CEO
Tioga Medical Center, Tioga

8
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Financial Impacts of the Oil Boom

Insufficient Capital

There is an immediate need for infrastructure expansion, but hospitals and clinics cannot access the
capital required to build and renovate. Hospital administrators most often cited infrastructure issues
within emergency rooms and clinics as the major challenge caused by the oil boom. However, in the
same context, many administrators also mentioned that their facility is aged and the need to build new
buildings outweighs the benefits of renovating existing structures.

Access to capital is the primary challenge to meeting patient demand.

Rural hospitals and clinics consistently operate on razor-thin budgets with narrow margins, highlighted
by two-thirds of critical-access facilities located in rural North Dakota reporting losses in two of the last
three years, making capital projects difficult to undertake. Further complicating this problem, hospitals
and clinics are finding major issues in securing capital from outside sources, which is required to
undertake much-needed projects. This is impacting future planning.

e Most hospitals lack the ability to self-
finance. Because the growth has been so f \
rapid, hospitals and clinics in western “We are trying t o address the needs for our own
North Dakota do not have extensive § Jittle community as best as we can. Itis getting
credit histories to support large funding | tough. It would be great if we had something like
requests and cannot satisfy the stringent § g loan program to get capital for hospitals at a
demands of financiers. reasonable interest rate — a pool of funds that

hospitals in North Dakota could draw from. We

e Many facilities, particularly in the more need capital funding for projects for infrastructure
rural areas, are aged. The condition of § improvements.”

the hospitals not only puts patient care at - Randall Pederson, CEO
risk but it also puts at risk the financial Tioga Medical Center, Tioga
stability of the hospital and jeopardizes

bond ratings. Bond ratings have a direct k J

impact on the ability to secure capital.

e For those still in the planning stage, financing problems are causing projects to stall or preventing
them from moving into action altogether.

e Current funding mechanisms take too long. Numerous expansion projects are in the process of
being funded by USDA Rural Development funds, as it is one of the primary funding sources
available to the hospitals in rural western North Dakota. This process was repeatedly described as
lengthy and burdensome. Some hospitals report that the USDA process takes years to complete ~
and requires significant staff time to prepare the documentation required by the application.

e Creative solutions are limited. One hospital is considering a community-wide capital campaign.
Some facilities are trying to absorb costs internally, while others are seeking funding through their
hospital foundations.
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e One exception is the community of Williston, which has been able to manage the demand in a much
different way than smaller surrounding communities and has a $30 million expansion underway.
Administrators were able to secure capital from a variety of funding sources, including significant oil
company investment, to make their expansion possible. In addition, Williston was well-positioned,
as they had existing infrastructure in place to accommodate much of the growth.

Percentage Increase in Bad Debt
by Hospital — 2007 vs. 2011

Bad Debt

Levels of bad debt are rapidly increasing
across-the-board in western North Dakota
at a staggering average rate of 138 percent
over the last four years. This
unprecedented increase in bad debt is
jeopardizing the financial viability of many
hospitals in western North Dakota and is
not sustainable in the long-term.

-16%
D E C F G M A H J | B QL K RO P

Western ND—High Impact Area EasternND

Several factors are contributing to this rise
in bad debt. Increasingly, hospitals are
seeing uninsured patients who are either
unable to pay or do not pay their bills.
Furthermore, due to the transient nature
of the incoming population, many new
patients lack stable addresses and 1373%
hospitals are having difficulty locating '
current addresses to send bills to patients,
resulting in increased nonpayment and
increases in bad debt.

Percentage Increase in Number of Uninsured

Patients by Hospital — 2007 vs. 2011

Hospitals have a limited ability to raise
fees for services provided because they
are bound by the state’s Medicaid
reimbursement rate for services. To aide
revenue flow and alleviate some of the
bad debt, some administrators mentioned
the need to increase Medicaid reimbursement rates to bring more revenue into the system to offset the

rise in bad debt.

Rising Costs

Population growth and rapid development of North Dakota’s oil fields have resulted in rising costs for
hospitals and clinics in a variety of ways.

e Hospitals and clinics are paying high premiums for services in western North Dakota.
Many administrators report that their costs are unexpectedly increasing simply due to their
geography. They report that bids for construction services are approximately 30 percent higher in
the oilimpacted areas thanin eastern North Dakota because of the high demand.
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Workforce costs are significant.

As previously mentioned, hospitals and clinics are incurring significant expense to recruit and retain
staff. Health care is a labor-intensive industry and stiff competition for both medical and entry-level
staff is driving up wage and salary expenses across the board.

Temporary solutions to staffing needs are too expensive to sustain.
Although contract staff is helping hospitals meet the increased demand for care, all agree this

solution is too expensive to sustain
long-term. Almost all hospitals are
currently utilizing contract staff to
some degree. In 2011, seven
critical access hospitals in western
North Dakota increased annual
expenses for temporary, contract
and traveling staff by a combined
total of $536,000, compared to
2007. These added expenses are in
addition to the enhanced
recruitment efforts and salary
increases cited above.

While temporary staff helps satisfy
the growing need for patient care
in the short-term, it is a less than

Temporary, Contract, Traveling Staff

Costs by Hospital — 2007 vs. 2011

$180K

$150K- K- -
$43K $0 $1;8 98K $58K.  gqyw  s1ak
‘ 0 SIK ¢ %0
3 H G F ] B 1 A

™ 2007 ®2011

ideal solution that is expensive and unsustainable in the long-term. In addition to cost, several
respondents indicated additional issues with temporary staff, such as:

e They are often double the cost of a regular full-time employee.

e They are often of subpar caliber.

e They are not vested in patient care, the community or the success of the organization, like

permanent employees.

“Contract costs are up 300 to 400 percent. Contract staff has negative financial consequences.
Contract workers also do not understand our mission and vision. They are not vested, not
committed to the community orto the organization. They just want their paycheck.”

- John Kutch, President and CEO
Trinity Health, Minot

y

Himle Rapp & Company, Inc. — August 23, 2012
Page 16



Public Health Concerns

Major public health concerns are emerging and the need for more preventive health care is evident. This
is particularly true in oil impacted communities where there has been a significant change in public
health concerns, including an increase in sexually transmitted diseases, traffic accidents, drug and
alcohol-related injuries, and increased incidents of violence, including domestic and sexual assaults.
These digressions in public health have caused a direct impact on demand and capacity for area
hospitals and clinics.

Sexually transmitted diseases are on the rise.

Many hospitals and clinics in western North Dakota have seen an increase in sexually transmitted
diseases. North Dakota Department of Health data shows a 24 percent increase in Chlamydia cases and
a 14 percent increase in Gonorrhea cases in the most highly impacted counties in the western portion of
the state. Many administrators see the increase as a direct result of the rise in prostitution caused by
the boom. The increase in STD cases has a direct impact on patient demand for clinical visits.

Trafficaccidents are on the rise.

Another emerging public health concern is the dramatic rise in traffic accidents caused by increased
truck traffic related to the oil boom. The Rural Transportation Safety and Security Center at North
Dakota State University reports that traffic accidents increased 33 percent in the high impact area
between 2007 and 2010. Research also indicates that the accidents are increasingly involving oversize
and overweight trucks. The number of oversize and overweight trucks using roads in the oil impacted
areas has more than doubled over the past three years, creating a dangerous situation on the roads. In
response to this growing concern, the North Dakota Department of Transportation, the North Dakota
Petroleum Council and the North Dakota Highway Patrol are banding together to create a road safety

campaign, ProgressZone, to address this issue.

Increasing traffic accidents and the severity of related injuries were also mentioned earlier in this report
when evaluating the increase in trauma cases in western North Dakota hospitals. As previously cited, the
increase in traffic accidents and resulting injuries are having a direct impact on the ability to provide
emergency care to accident victims.

Communities are experiencing increased incidents of violence.

Communities in western North Dakota are facing a significant increase in incidents of violent crime
including robberies, rape, assaults and thefts, due in large part to the population explosion. Pharmacy
burglaries and drug and alcohol-related crimes are also reportedly on the rise in the high impact area.
Recent media articles also report widespread and increased incidents of prostitution. Violent crime in
Williston alone tripled in 2010. In Dickinson, the average number of assaults from 2008 to 2010 was
more than five times the average from 1999 through 2007. Felony cases in the Southwest Judicial
District, which includes the communities of Dickinson, Hettinger and Bowman, soared 85 percent from
2006 to 2011. This increase in violent crime in the high impact area has an impact on hospital capacity to

provide trauma care.

Some hospitals are taking a proactive approach to dealing with the increase of domestic and sexual
assaults in their communities. In Minot, a new effort to treat and address the increase in sexual assaults
is underway. The community hospital helped establish the Sexual Assault Nurse Examiners (SANE)
training program to treat and talk with victims of sexual assault. Programs such as SANE, while effective
and necessary to support victims of sexual assault, stretch staff to take on increased responsibilities.
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Conclusions

1. The financial stability of many hospitals and clinics is at risk.

e The financial health of these organizations is suffering because of the dramatic rise in bad debt,
aged infrastructure, excessive costs associated with doing business and the lack of access to
capital for facility improvements. While these are not uncommon challenges for rural health
care providers across the country, the corresponding rise in demand for patient care elevates
the situation in North Dakota to a genuine crisis.

e Financial instability risks degradation of current bond ratings, which would mean higher
borrowing rates — jeopardizing the ability to secure capital for much-needed expansion and
improvement projects.

2. Continued pressure on the hospitals and clinics will impact patient care if not

addressed.
e The inability to expand or build
infrastructure necessary to meet r N

demand will - negatively impact § «oqith care is the number one employer in the state of
patient care. North Dakota and it is not earmarked to receive any

* Providers are being stretched § f,n4ing from the Legacy Fund that is set aside from the
beyond their limits, as evidenced by § o/ jmpact. Willit take a casualty for the eyes to
the dramatic increase in traumas | pecome wide open? No hospital has closed. Will it

and emergency room visits, as well | +qke the threat of closure to increase the seriousness?”
as the difficulty in recruiting more - Jodi Atkinson, CEO
providers to the area. These St. Andrew’s Health Center, Botttineau
challenges are creating distortions \ J
that will impact patient care, both

directly and indirectly.

e |f not addressed soon, the factors contributing to financial instability may force hospitals and
clinics to make drastic decisions about services they offer to patients.

e The housing crisis, if not properly addressed, will leave hospitals without necessary staff to
provide care to patients.

3. Solutions need to be coordinated and comprehensive.

e The current financial instability at hospitals and clinics in North Dakota necessitates
comprehensive, system-wide solutions.

e Providers are attempting to coordinate responses to these challenges, including sharing
information about best practices to address existing challenges (i.e. collections practices to
mitigate the increase in bad debt) and developing strategies to achieve greater operational
efficiencies (i.e. innovative ideas for recruiting and retaining staff).

e Hospitals and clinics along with a broad coalition of partners, including patients, policymakers,
the oil industry and other business leaders, must work together to solve these challenges. Each
entity has a vested interest in having a robust and healthy workforce to maintain the state
economy and overall health of North Dakotans.
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Potential Solutions

Overcoming the challenges outlined above will require consensus on solutions and a partnership
between patients, health care providers, policymakers, oil industry leaders and other business leaders in
North Dakota. The following proposed solutions merit consideration by all parties involved:

1. Expand and restructure the Energy Infrastructure and Oil Impact Grant

Program to better meet growing needs.

e Additional funds could be appropriated for the Energy Infrastructure and Oil Impact Grant
Program and dedicated to assisting hospitals and clinics in oil impacted regions. Currently, the
funding available is inadequate to cover increasing needs of health care providers. Hospital
administrators fully understand there is not enough funding to address every need, but request
that grant amounts be increased to satisfy more needs of the provider community.

e Funding is currently unavailable for hospitals and clinics unless they partner with a
governmental entity. Eliminating the partnership requirement would remove an unnecessary
burden for health care facilities. Expanding eligibility for Qil Impact Grants to allow hospitals and
clinics to become eligible without a partner would improve access to capital to better meet the
growing demandfor health care.

e Funding associated with Oil Impact Grants is currently only available for one-time expenditures.
Hospitals and clinics need help with one-time and reoccurring expenses to address issues of
infrastructure, staffing and workforce. Expanding the grant program to include recurring
expenses better serves the health care community and makes more expenditures eligible for

grant assistance.

2. Encourage capital flow through state financed low- or no-interest loan

programs.

e The State of North Dakota could create a dedicated fund with sufficient resources to establish a
low- or no-interest loan program to support existing health care facilities’ capital needs for both
the short- and long-term.

e (City and county governments in western North Dakota are restricted in their ability to issue debt
or act as the issuer of debt due to existing bonds and debt loads. Establishing a state low-
interest loan fund would reduce burdens on health care providers and government entities to
provide access to capital to meet short-term and long-term needs.

e Many hospitals need access to funding in the short-term to cover increases in operating
expenses and manage this transition period. Because the need is immediate, application
processes for loans to address short-term needs should be quick and not overly burdensome.

e Some hospitals and clinics need to expand or build new facilities to meet patient demand for
health services and care for an increasing population base. The state could facilitate responsible
planning and expansion to meet patient needs by providing hospitals and clinics access to long-
term loans for capital projects at low interest rates.
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3. Convene a Governor’s task force to actively manage challenges and find

solutions.
e A task force focusing on health care in western North Dakota should be commissioned and
appointed by the governor. Suggested task force members include:
o Administrators from hospitals and health systems throughout North Dakota ;
o Representatives from the oil industry, with a focus on developing partnerships with the
health care industry and rural communities; and
o Representatives from other stakeholder organizations including the long-term care
industry, EMS professionals, elected officials and business leaders.

e The task force would assist the governor in setting parameters for low- or no-interest loan
programs and the expansion/restructuring of Oil Impact Grants.

e The task force would provide ongoing advice to the governor as health care needs of the
population in western North Dakota continue to evolve.
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Methodology

The Health Policy Consortium engaged Himle Rapp & Company, Inc. to conduct research to assess the
comprehensive impacts the oil boom s having on hospitals and clinics in western North Dakota. The goal
of this research is to capture the scope of the problem and develop valuable recommendations to
present to policymakers and others regarding the issues stakeholders are facing. Successful completion
of this project would not have been possible without the participation and assistance of the North
Dakota Hospital Association (NDHA), many of NDHA’s member hospitals and the North Dakota Medical

Association.

Research Methodology

The research was conducted using two methodologies and numerous outside resources:

1. In-Depth Phone Interviews
Twenty-two interviews were conducted with opinion leaders in the health care industry and key

stakeholders in western North Dakota. The interviews were conducted from June 11 - 29, 2012. The
interviews addressed a number of issues facing area hospitals and clinics, including infrastructure
and capacity strain, the cost of care, workforce, housing, and current and future solutions.

Interviewees included hospital administrators in western North Dakota and other stakeholders,

including providers, emergency medical services professionals and leaders from business and health

care associations.

2. Online Survey

A wider, statewide group of hospital administrators completed an online survey and provided

statistical data to further assess the impact. Although hospitals in western North Dakota were the

primary focus, hospitals and clinics in the eastern part of North Dakota were included to provide

valuable comparison data. Data is compiled and reported by region and without specific attribution

to hospitals in order to maintain confidentiality.

3. Other Resources

Other sources of information accessed during this research include:

e First Biennial Report: Health Issues for the State of North Dakota, University of North Dakota
School of Medicine & Health Sciences (2011).

e NDHA Oil Impact Survey, North Dakota Hospital Association (April 2012).

e The Impact of Oil and Energy Development on Out-of-Hospital Emergency Medical Services,
SafeTouch Solutions, LLP (June 2011).

e  ND Petroleum Council Survey Results, North Dakota Petroleum Council (March 2012).

e ND Health Care Emergency Preparedness Conference Presentation, Tom Nehring, Division of
EMS & Trauma, North Dakota Department of Health (2012).

e Trendwatch: The Opportunities and Challenges for Rural Hospitals in an Era of Health Reform,
American Hospital Association (April 2011).

e North Dakota Critical Access Hospital Annual Financial Analysis, North Dakota Hospital
Association and Darrold Bertsch, CEO, Sakakawea Medical Center (2009 - 2011).

e ND Traffic Safety: Oil Counties, Rural Transportation Safety and Security Center, North Dakota
State University (Summer 2011).

e Sexually Transmitted Disease Data, North Dakota Department of Health,

http://www.ndheaith.gov/STD/Data/STDData.htm (2007, 2011).

e Recent media articles.

Himle Rapp & Company, Inc. — August 23, 2012
Page 21



JenaJLar Gm‘ nclée 4
SB AMET dubeomaitiee H-9-(3
13.0505.02001 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Grindberg
January 30, 2013

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187

Page 2, line 26, remove "industrial commission is responsible for contracting with a certified
public"

Page 2, line 27, remove "accounting firm to audit the"

Page 2, line 27, replace "as necessary" with "must be audited in accordance with section
6-09-29"

Page 3, line 1, removed the underscore from "- Audit"

Page 3, line 2, remove the underscore from "and costs of administration"
Page 3, line 8, remove "Funds in the"

Page 3, remove lines 9 through 12

Page 3, line 13, overstrike "2."

Page 4, replace lines 14 through 17 with:

"%2. Funds in the medical facility infrastructure fund may be used for loans as
provided under this section and to pay the costs of administration of the
fund. Annually, the Bank may deduct a service fee for administering the
medical facility infrastructure fund maintained under this section.

8.3. The medical facility infrastructure fund must be audited in accordance with
section 6-09-29. The cost of the audit and any other actual costs incurred
by the Bank on behalf of the fund must be paid from the fund."

Page 5, line 1, replace "Sections 1 and" with "Section"
Page 5, line 1, remove the second "and"

Page 5, line 1, replace "are" with "is"

Page 5, line 2, replace "are" with "is"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1






13.0505.02002 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Kilzer
February 13, 2013
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187

Page 2, line 10, replace "twenty" with "three"

Page 2, line 10, replace "seventy-five" with "twenty-five"
Page 4, line 20, replace "$150,000,000" with "$12,000,000"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1



13.0505.02004 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Mathern
February 14, 2013

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187
Page 2, line 3, remove "ail"
Page 2, line 4, replace "producing" with "oil-producing”

Page 2, line 6, after "must" insert "limit loans to facilities designated as critical access hospitals
or medical clinics and"

Page 2, line 6, replace "oil producing" with "oil-producing"

Page 2, line 7, remove "and to applicants that are prospective payment system hospitals that
receive"

Page 2, line 8, remove "trauma patients from oil producing counties"
Page 4, line 20, replace "$150,000,000" with "$75,000,000"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1
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To address the primary challenges for health care delivery identified through this study, policymakers
will need to consider innovative programs to improve access to capital for the health care industry.
Potential solutions include expanding the oil impact grant program and/or establishing a streamlined,
low-or no-interest loan program for capital projects. Coordinating recommended solutions forthe
remaining challenges would best be accomplished through an active task force involving health care
providers, policymakers, oil industry representatives and other business leaders.
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Potential Solutions

Overcoming the challenges outlined above will require consensus on solutions and a partnership
between patients, health care providers, policymakers, oil industry leaders and other business leaders in
North Dakota. The following proposed solutions merit consideration by all parties involved:

1. Expand and restructure the Energy Infrastructure and Oil Impact Grant

Program to better meet growing needs.

e Additional funds could be appropriated for the Energy Infrastructure and Oil Impact Grant
Program and dedicated to assisting hospitals and clinics in oil impacted regions. Currently, the
funding available is inadequate to cover increasing needs of health care providers. Hospital
administrators fully understand there is not enough funding to address every need, but request
that grant amounts be increased to satisfy more needs of the provider community.

e Funding is currently unavailable for hospitals and clinics unless they partner with a
governmental entity. Eliminating the partnership requirement would remove an unnecessary
burden for health care facilities. Expanding eligibility for Oil Impact Grants to allow hospitals and
clinics to become eligible without a partner would improve access to capital to better meet the
growing demand for health care.

e Funding associated with Oil Impact Grants is currently only available for one-time expenditures.
Hospitals and clinics need help with one-time and reoccurring expenses to address issues of
infrastructure, staffing and workforce. Expanding the grant program to include recurring
expenses better serves the health care community and makes more expenditures eligible for
grant assistance.

2. Encourage capital flow through state financed low- or no-interest loan

programs.
e The State of North Dakota could create a dedicated fund with sufficient resources to establish a
low- or no-interest loan program to support existing health care facilities’ capital needs for both

the short- and long-term.

e City and county governments in western North Dakota are restricted in their ability to issue debt
or act as the issuer of debt due to existing bonds and debt loads. Establishing a state low-
interest loan fund would reduce burdens on health care providers and government entities to
provide access to capital to meet short-term and long-term needs.

e Many hospitals need access to funding in the short-term to cover increases in operating
expenses and manage this transition period. Because the need is immediate, application
processes for loans to address short-term needs should be quick and not overly burdensome.

e Some hospitals and clinics need to expand or build new facilities to meet patient demand for
health services and care for an increasing population base. The state could facilitate responsible
planning and expansion to meet patient needs by providing hospitals and clinics access to long-
term loans for capital projects at low interest rates.
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3. Convene a Governor’s task force to actively manage challenges and find

solutions.
e A task force focusing on health care in western North Dakota should be commissioned and
appointed by the governor. Suggested task force members include:
o Administrators from hospitals and health systems throughout North Dakota ;
o Representatives from the oil industry, with a focus on developing partnerships with the
health care industry and rural communities; and
o Representatives from other stakeholder organizations including the long-term care
industry, EMS professionals, elected officials and business leaders.

e The task force would assist the governor in setting parameters for low- or no-interest loan
programs and the expansion/restructuring of Oil Impact Grants.

e The task force would provide ongoing advice to the governor as health care needs of the
population in western North Dakota continue to evolve.
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We are asking for your support to allocate funds that can be used in a low
interest loan program to help hospitals in oil impacted counties to adjust to
this growth and to continue to meet the needs brought about by this change
in North Dakota.

Again | am asking that you give SB 2187 a do pass.

Respectfully,

Je . Jurena; President
North Dakota Hospital Association









recommendation on SB 2187, with an increase in available funds to a total
$75 million.

Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to share my testimony. | would
be happy to answer any questions that you may have.

Respectfully,

Darrold Bertsch, CEO

Sakakawea Medical Center, Hazen

Interim CEQO, Coal Country Community Health Center, Beulah
dberisch@sakmedcenter.org

Cell 701-880-1440
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Proposed Amendments to Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2187

Page 2, Line 7 overstrike "and to applicants that are prospective payment system hospitals that
receive trauma patients from oil producing counties"

Page 2, Line 10 replace "three million" with "fifteen million"

Page 2, Line 10 replace "twenty-five percent"” with "seventy-five percent"”
Page 4, Line 21 replace "$12,000,000" with "$100,000,000"

Page 4 Line 30 replace "2017" with "2013"




13.0505.03003 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff
Title. . v
April 3, 2013

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 1175 of the House
Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2187 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 4, replace "an" with "a contingent"

Page 2, line 7, remove "and to applicants that are prospective payment system hospitals that
receive"

Page 2, line 8, remove "trauma patients from oil producing counties"

Page 2, line 10, replace "three" with "fifteen"

Page 2, line 10, replace "twenty-five" with "seventy-five"
Page 4, line 19, after the first boldfaced period insert "CONTINGENT"

Page 4, line 19, replace "There" with "If the board of university and school lands confirms that it
will authorize no more than $100,000,000 from the strategic investment and
improvements fund to provide school construction projects under section 15.1-36-02,
there"

Page 4, line 21, replace "$12,000,000" with "$100,000,000"
Page 4, line 28, replace "30" with "31"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 13.0505.03003
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187

Page 4, line 7, replace “strategic” with “medical facility infrastructure”

Page 4, line 8, remove “investment and improvements”

Page 4, line 12, after “section” insert ", _and transfer the remaining balance to the
strategic investment and improvements fund in the state treasury.”

Renumber accordingly




















